
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Matthew Evans on 01432383690 or e-mail 
matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 

Agenda 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 3 February 2026 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: Conference Room 1 - Herefordshire Council, Plough 
Lane Offices, Hereford, HR4 0LE 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Matthew Evans 

Tel: 01432383690 

Email: matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Licensing Sub-
Committee 
Membership  
  
 Councillor Polly Andrews (Chairperson) 
 Councillor Dave Davies  
 Councillor Peter Hamblin  

 
   

 
 



 
Herefordshire Council  3 FEBRUARY 2026 
 

 

Agenda  

 Pages 
PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 

 

THE NOLAN PRINCIPLES 
 

 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.   NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a Member of the committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda. 
 

 

4.   REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF: MAGAZIN 
TIMISOARA, 22 COMMERCIAL ROAD, HEREFORD, HR1 2BD CALLED 
BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY- 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

11 - 94 

 To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of 
Magazin Timisoara, 22 Commercial Road, Hereford. HR1 2BD called by the 
Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

 

5.   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the following items will not be, or is likely 
not to be, open to the public and press at the time it is considered. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: that under section 100(A)(4) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Schedule 12(A) of 
the Act, as indicated below and it is 
considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
1 Information relating to any individual. 
 
7 Information relating to any action taken 

or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or 
prosecution of crime. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:        that under Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing 

Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the 
public be excluded from the meeting as it is 
considered that the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing, 
or that part of the hearing, taking place in 
public. 

 

 



 
Herefordshire Council  3 FEBRUARY 2026 
 

 

6.   REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF: TASTE OF RAJ, 67 
ST OWEN STREET, HEREFORD HR1 2JQ CALLED BY THE LICENSING 
AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY- LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

95 - 148 

 To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of 
Taste of Raj, 67 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2JQ called by the Licensing 
Authority as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

 

7.   REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF: JALSAGOR, 60 ST 
OWEN STREET, HEREFORD HR1 2JQ CALLED BY THE LICENSING 
AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY - LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

149 - 170 

 To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect 
of Jalsagor, 60 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2JQ  called by the Licensing 
Authority as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

 Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

 Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

 Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

 Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

 Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

 Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

 Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

 Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

 Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
 

Please note that the council will be making a recording of this public meeting.  These 

recordings form part of the public record of the meeting and are made available for members 

of the public via the council’s website.  

 

To ensure that recording quality is maintained, could members and any attending members 

of the public speak as clearly as possible and keep background noise to a minimum while 

recording is in operation.  

 
Please also note that other attendees are permitted to film, photograph and record our public 

meetings provided that it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 

 

If you do not wish to be filmed or photographed, please identify yourself so that anyone who 

intends to record the meeting can be made aware.   

5



 

Please ensure that your mobile phones and other devices are turned to silent during the 

meeting. 

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 

6



Licensing Hearing Flowchart 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction 

Discussion  

Report by council 

 Outline of application 

 Summary of issues  
 
 

Parties address committee using 
spokesman if necessary  

Applicant addresses committee 

Members of committee can ask 
questions 

Cross examination generally not 
permitted.  

All parties to have equal maximum 
length of time to speak.  

Note:  hearing may be adjourned or 
heard in parties’ absence. 

7





 

Marshall, Caroline (Democratic Services Officer) Page 1 26/01/26 
Version number 3 

The Seven Principles of Public Life  

(Nolan Principles) 

 

1. Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

2. Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. 
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve 
any interests and relationships. 

3. Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

4. Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

5. Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear 
and lawful reasons for so doing. 

6. Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

7. Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They 
should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to 
challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 

9





 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Senior LeadOfficer, 01432 261761, email: licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

OFFICIAL 

Review of a premises licence in respect of: Magazin Timisoara, 22 Commercial 
Road, Hereford, HR1 2BD called by the Licensing Authority as a Responsible 
Authority- Licensing Act 2003 
 

Meeting: Licensing sub-committee 

Meeting date: Tuesday 3 February 2026 at 10:00hrs 
 
Report by: Senior Licensing Technical Officer 

Classification 

Open 

Decision type 

This is not an executive decision 
 
  

Wards affected 

Hereford - Widemarsh 

Purpose 
To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of Magazin Timisoara, 22 
Commercial Road, Hereford. HR1 2BD called by the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  

The sub-committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in 
the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate weight to: 

 the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives, 

 the representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties, 

 the guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

(appendix 11), and 

 the Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 - 2025. 

Reasons for Recommendations 
Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003 

 

11

AGENDA ITEM 4



 

OFFICIAL 

Alternative options 
1. There are a number of options open to the committee in relation to the review: 
 

a)  The modification of the conditions of the premises licence; 

b)  The exclusion of any licensable activities from the scope of the licence; 

c)          To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 

d)  The suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and 

e)  The revocation of the licence 

 
2.  Where the licensing authority takes a step mentioned in bullet point a, b and d above it may 

provide that the modification, exclusion or suspension is to have effect for only such period (not 
exceeding three months) as it may specify. 

 
3.  Alternatively it is open to the licensing authority to determine that no action is required to 

promote the licensing objectives or issue an informal warning in writing to the licence holder 
and/or to recommend improvement within a specified period of time. 

 

Key considerations 
 

The licensing authority must take into account any relevant representations made. 

Relevant representations are those that: 

 

 relate to one or more of the licensing objectives; 

 have not been withdrawn; and 

 are made by the premises licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested party 

 

4. The details of the application are: 

 

Applicant The Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority 

Solicitor/Agent Not applicable 

Type of 

application: 

Review 

Date received: 

24 November 2025 

28 Days consultation ended 

23 December 2025 

   

 

Summary of Application 

 

The application for the review is attached (appendix 1) 
 
5.  Copies of the application were sent to the premise licence holder and all responsible 

authorities. 
 

6. The Licensing Authority’s grounds for the review are: 

12



 

OFFICIAL 

 
On four (4) separate occasions since October 2021 and three (3) of those occasions being in 
the last three (3) months between September 2025 and November 2025 the premises has 
failed to comply with conditions attached to their premises licence despite receiving three (3) 
written warning letters from the Licensing Authority. 

 
Premises History 
 
7. The premises was first licensed in January 2020 as a convenience store for Sale/Supply of 

Alcohol for consumption off the premises Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 22:00 
 
8. Since first being licenced, the Licensing Authority has received two (2) applications to Transfer 

the premises licence and two (2) applications to Vary Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS). 
The last Transfer and Vary DPS was granted 14 August 2025. 

 
9. On 28 September 2021, the Licensing Authority received an application to vary the premises 

licence for an extension to licensable hours for Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption off the 
premises) Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 02:00.   

 
10. The Licensing Authority as a responsible authority objected to the variation on 23 October 

2021 due to previous breaches of licence conditions relating to an unobstructed view at all 
times into the licensable area of the premises. A breach of conditions letter was sent by email 
and post on 5 October 2021 to the premises licence holder, asking for the condition to be 
complied with within seven (7) days. A member of the authority was passing the premises on 
20 October 2021 and provided photographic evidence that the condition was still not being 
complied with.  Confirmation the condition had been complied with was received on 28 October 
2021 and the Licensing Authorities objection was withdrawn on 1 November 2021. 

 
11. The licence was granted on 2 November 2021 for Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption off the 

premises) Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 02:00 
 
 
Current Licence 

 
12. The licence at (appendix 2) authorises the following licensable activities during the hours   shown:  
  

 Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption off the premises) 

 Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 02:00 

The licence is also subject to certain conditions that the premises has to comply with when open 
for licensable activities. 

 
Circumstances Leading to the Review 
 
13. On 5 October 2021, the Licensing Authority wrote to the then premises licence holder due to 

complaints that members of the public were unable to see into the shop and that the windows 
were obstructed. They gave the premises licence holder seven (7) days to comply with the 
condition. (Appendix 3) 

 
14. A member of the authority was passing the premises on 20 October 2021 and provided 

photographic evidence to the Licensing Authority that the condition was still not being complied 
with (appendix 4) 

 

13



 

OFFICIAL 

15. On 5 September 2025, members of the Licensing Authority undertook a licence check at the 
premises as part of a multi-agency joint visit. Several of the premises licence conditions were 
not being complied with. Four (4) conditions under Prevention of Crime & Disorder relating to 
window coverage, Spirits of high ABV, an incident log and staff training records. Two (2) 
conditions under Protection of Children from Harm were also not being complied with which 
were an age challenge policy and a refusals register.  The Licensing Authority discussed the 
breaches verbally with the premises licence holder and his assistant, along with confirming with 
them verbally all alcohol 15% ABV and above had to be displayed behind the counter.  The 
visit was followed with a breach of conditions letter which was posted and emailed to the 
premises licence holder on 8 September 2025 (appendix 5).  

 
16. On 23 September 2025, Police Alcohol Licensing Officers from West Mercia Police visited the 

premises following receipt of our letter dated 8 September 2025. An individual at the premises 
produced copies of staff training in Challenge Responsible Sales in Hospitality and retail. The 
staff training records, incident logbook, refusals log and Challenge 25 written policy were 
viewed and were all now being complied with. However, the window display was full of high 
spirited alcohol above 15% covering both sides of window top to bottom and door was open 
which was covered with signage.  

 
Cabinets still had spirits of 25 %, 28 % and 40 %, ABV not behind counter. An individual at the 
premises advised they had no room for it anywhere else and were told by the officers that it 
had to be moved that day, which they said they would do.  As a result of the visit by West 
Mercia Police, the Licensing Authority wrote a breach of conditions letter addressed to the 
premises licence holder on 24 September 2025 (appendix 6). 

 
17. On 20 November 2025, Police Alcohol Licensing Officers from West Mercia Police visited the 

premises following receipt of our letters dated 8 September 2025 and 24 September 2025 and 
their visit on 23 September 2025.  Whilst at the premises, windows had been cleared a lot more 
than previously; however, there were still obstructions within the middle section of the window 
contrary to the condition in their licence. There were a number of bottles of spirits (30% ABV+) 
displayed in the window and not behind the counter, contrary to their licence condition:  

 
18. As a result of the premises licence holder’s continued non-compliance with the same conditions 

despite the previous warnings, this review was launched. 
 
19. The Licensing Authority visited the premises on 25 November 2025 to serve the review papers 

and gave verbal advice to a gentleman at premises, as there were still a number of bottles of 
spirits (30% ABV+) displayed in the window and not behind the counter, contrary to their licence 
condition and there were still obstructions within the middle section of the window contrary to the 
condition in their licence, so despite previous written and verbal warnings, the conditions were 
still not being complied with. The photos at appendix 7 show bottles of spirits of 30% ABV or 
more and the window was still obstructed on 25 November 2025, despite the previous verbal 
advice and written warnings. 

 
Summary of Representations 

 
20. Representations supporting the review were received from West Mercia Police (appendix 8), and 

Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Service (appendix 9). 
 

21. In addition, the Licensing Authority have requested amendments to the wording of two (2) 
existing conditions. The first existing condition it is proposed to be amended is in relation to spirits 
of high ABV being sold from behind the counter and second existing condition it is proposed to 
be amended is in relation to there being an unobstructed view at all times into the licensable 
area of the premises. The proposed amended conditions can be found at appendix 10. 

 

14



 

OFFICIAL 

Community impact 

22. Any decision may have an impact on the local community. 

 

Environmental Impact 

23. This report is in relation to a premises license under the Licensing Act 2003 and as such there 
are minimal environmental impacts for the council, as the licensing authority. 

Equality duty 

 

24. Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities is set out as 
follows: 

 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to – 

 

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by 
or under this Act; 

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it; 

c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it. 

 

25. There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report. 

26. This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and the residents 
from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of this report may have 
financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood and/or may have impact upon the 
day to day lives of residents living in close proximity to the premises. 

27. Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has the right to 
respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes business premises). 
This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of grounds including the protection 
of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol – Article 1 – also provides that every person 
is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions and shall not be deprived of his 
possessions except in the public interest and conditions provided for by law.  Members must 
accordingly make a decision which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a 
balance between the rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole. 

Resource implications 

28. This report is in relation to a premises license under the Licensing Act 2003 and as such there 
are minimal resource implications for the council, as the licensing authority. 

 

Financial implications 
 

15



 

OFFICIAL 

29. There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the council as licensing authority at this 
time. 

Legal implications 

30. The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing objectives 
namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention of public nuisance; 
and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions under the Licensing Act 2003. 
Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance under Section 182 of the Act and the 
Council’s own statement of licensing policy. The options available to the licensing authority are 

set out in section 1 of this report. 

31. The sub committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have appeared before 
the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority. 

32. The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: CO/5533/2006) 
at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] 
EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the Honourable Mrs Justice Black.  In this case 
it was summed up that: - 

33. A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do so but will need to 
give full reasons for their actions. 

34. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to a licence 
with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ must be presented to 
support the reason for imposing these conditions. 

35. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of Bristol 
Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice Queen's Bench 
Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC 625 (Admin) 2009 WL 
648859 in which it was said: 

36. ‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and proportionate for 
the promotion for licensing objectives’.  

37. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an 

enforceable condition. 

 
Right of Appeal 
 
38. Schedule 5 Part 1 Paragraph 8 of the Licensing Act 2003 gives a right of appeal which states: 
 Review of premises licence. 
 
(1)  This paragraph applies where an application for a review of a premises licence is decided 

under section 52. 
(2)  An appeal may be made against that decision by 
(a) the applicant for the review 
(b) the holder of the premises licence, or 
(c) any other person who made relevant representations in relation to the application  
(3)  In sub paragraph (2) “relevant representations” has the meaning given in section 52(7). 
 
 

16



 

OFFICIAL 

39. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court and must be made within 21 days beginning 
with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision 
appealed against 

Risk management 

 
40.  There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a right of 

appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21 days of being notified of the decision in 
writing. 

Consultees 

 

41. All responsible authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire.  

 

Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 - Application Form for Review 
Appendix 2 – Copy of Current Premises Licence 
Appendix 3 – Breach of Conditions Letter 5 October 2021 
Appendix 4 – Photo taken 20 October 2021 
Appendix 5 – Breach of Conditions Letter 8 September 2025 
Appendix 6 – Breach of Conditions Letter 24 September 2025 
Appendix 7 – Photos of Non-Compliance 25 November 2025 
Appendix 8 – West Mercia Police Representation 
Appendix 9 – Hereford & Worcester Fire & Rescue Service Representation 
Appendix 10 – Licensing Authority Proposed Conditions 
Appendix 11 – Relevant pages of the Section 182 Guidance 
 
Supplement Annexes  
 
SUPPLEMENT (i) – Information from HWFRS – Magazin Timisoara 
SUPPLEMENT (ii) – Information from the Licensing Authority 
SUPPLEMENT (iii) – Information from West Mercia Police  
  

Background papers 
None identified 
 

Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in 
this report. 
 
DPS – Designated Premises Supervisor 

 

17





 
 

 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

 

I    ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY 

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club 

premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 

Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

 

MAGAZIN TIMISOARA 

22 COMMERCIAL ROAD 

 

Post town   HEREFORD Post code (if known)  HR1 2BD 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

 

HEMEN NIGEEN HASSAN 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

PR01893 

 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details  

 

I am 

 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible  

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)  

or (B) below) 

  

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  

 

19



3) a member of the club to which this application relates  

(please complete (A) below) 

    

 

 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       

 (for example, Rev) 

 

Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick ✓ yes 

I am 18 years old or over 

 

 

 

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises 

address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 

(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 

      

Telephone number (if any) 

      

E-mail address (optional)  

      

 

20



 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 

 Name and address 

 

 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

LICENSING DEPARTMENT 

PLOUGH LANE 

HEREFORD 

HR4 0LE 

Telephone number (if any) 

01432 261761 

E-mail address (optional)  

licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk  

  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

 

 Please tick one or more boxes ✓ 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  

2) public safety  

3) the prevention of public nuisance  

4) the protection of children from harm  
 

21

mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk


Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

 

ON FOUR (4) SEPARATE OCCASIONS SINCE OCTOBER 2021 AND THREE (3) 
OF THOSE OCCASIONS BEING IN THE LAST THREE (3) MONTHS THE 
PREMISES HAS FAILED TO COMPLY WITH CONDITIONS ATTACHED ON THE 
PREMISE LICENCE DESPITE RECEIVING THREE (3) WRITTEN WARNING 
LETTERS FROM THE LICENSING AUTHORITY. 
 
UNDER SECTION 136 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 IT IS AN OFFENCE TO 
CARRY ON A LICENSABLE ACTIVITY ON OR FROM ANY PREMISES 
OTHERWISE THAN UNDER AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH AN AUTHORISATION 
(PREMISES LICENCE). 

22



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 

guidance note 3) 

 
ON THE EVENING OF FRIDAY 5 SEPTEMBER 2025 MEMBERS OF THE LICENSING 
TEAM VISITED THE PREMISES TO CARRY OUT A LICENCE INSPECTION.  WHILST AT 
THE PREMISES, IT BECAME APPARENT SOME CONDITIONS ON THE LICENCE WERE 
NOT BEING COMPLIED WITH.   
 

• SPIRITS OF HIGH ABV WILL BE SOLD FROM BEHIND THE COUNTER – IT WAS 
NOTED SPIRITS OF 25% ABV AND HIGHER WERE DISPLAYED ON THE SHOP 
FLOOR 

 

• AN INCIDENT LOG MUST BE KEPT AT THE PREMISES – THIS WAS NOT IN 
PLACE 
 

• STAFF TRAINING RECORDS FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL TO BE KEPT ON 
THE PREMISES – THIS WAS NOT IN PLACE 
 

• THE PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER WILL ENSURE THAT THERE IS AN 
UNOBSTRUCTED VIEW AT ALL TIMES INTO THE LICENSABLE AREA OF THE 
PREMISES. ANY OBSTRUCTION WILL BE RESTRICTED TO THE TOP 25% OF 
THE WINDOW AND THE BOTTOM 25% OF THE WINDOW IN EACH CASE - THIS 
MEANT THAT AT LEAST 50% OF ALL WINDOWS AND 100% OF ALL DOORS 
LOOKING INTO THE PREMISES FROM COMMERCIAL ROAD WERE TO BE 
CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTION – THE DOOR WAS FULLY COVERED IN SIGNAGE 
AND THE WINDOWS WITH SIGNAGE AND SHELVES 
 

• THE PREMISES SHALL OPERATE A CHALLENGE 25 POLICY. SUCH POLICY 
SHALL BE WRITTEN DOWN AND KEPT AT THE PREMISES – THIS WAS NOT IN 
PLACE 
 

• A WRITTEN REGISTER OF REFUSALS WILL BE KEPT – THIS WAS NOT IN 
PLACE. 
 

WHILST AT THE LICENSING OFFICERS SPOKE THROUGH EACH OF THE BREACHES 
WITH PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER AND DPS HEMEN NIGEEN HASSAN AND HIS 
COLLEAGUE. THEY  MADE SURE, THEY UNDERSTOOD AND WAS ADVISED TO MOVE 
ANY SPIRITS OF 15%ABV OR MORE TO BEHIND THE COUNTER, SHOWN ON GOOGLE 
WHERE THERE WERE INCIDENT LOG, REFUSALS REGISTER AND CHALLENGE 
POLICY TEMPLATES TO DOWNLOAD AND GAVE ADVICE ON THE UNOBSTRUCTED 
VIEW. 
AS A RESULT OF THEIR VISIT AND IN LINE WITH PROCEDURES, A BREACH OF 
CONDITIONS LETTER WAS EMAILED TO THE PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER HEMEN 
NIGEEN HASSAN 
 
ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2025, TWO (2) OFFICERS OF WEST MERCIA POLICE CONDUCTED 
A LICENCE CHECK AT THE PREMISES FROM 12:40 TO 13:00. 
THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS WERE STILL NOT BEING COMPLIED WITH 
 

• SPIRITS OF HIGH ABV WILL BE SOLD FROM BEHIND THE COUNTER – IT WAS 
WITNESSED SPIRITS OF 25 %, 28 % AND 40% ABV WERE ON DISPLAY IN THE 
CUSTOMER AREA AND HAD NOT BEEN MOVED AS PREVIOUSLY ADVISED. 
HE WAS TOLD TO REMOVE THESE WITH IMMEDIATE EFFECT. 

 

• THE PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER WILL ENSURE THAT THERE IS AN 
UNOBSTRUCTED VIEW AT ALL TIMES INTO THE LICENSABLE AREA OF THE 
PREMISES – THE WINDOW DISPLAY WAS FULL OF HIGH SPIRITED ALCOHOL 
ABOVE 15% COVERING BOTH SIDES OF WINDOW TOP TO BOTTOM AND 
DOOR WAS OPEN WHICH WAS COVERED WITH SIGNAGE 

 

23



AS A RESULT OF THEIR VISIT AND IN LINE WITH PROCEDURES, A BREACH OF 
CONDITIONS LETTER WAS EMAILED TO THE PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER HEMEN 
NIGEEN HASSAN ONCE AGAIN.  
 
ON 20 NOVEMBER 2025, TWO (2) OFFICERS OF WEST MERCIA POLICE CONDUCTED 
A LICENCE CHECK AT THE PREMISES FOLLOWING THE TWO (2) PREVIOUS 
BREACHES. 
 

• SPIRITS OF HIGH ABV WILL BE SOLD FROM BEHIND THE COUNTER - THERE 
WERE SEVERAL BOTTLES OF SPIRITS (30% + ABV) DISPLAYED IN THE 
WINDOW 
 

• THE PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER WILL ENSURE THAT THERE IS AN 
UNOBSTRUCTED VIEW AT ALL TIMES INTO THE LICENSABLE AREA OF THE 
PREMISES – THE DOORWAY HAD BEEN CLEARED AS PER PREVIOUS 
INSTRUCTIONS. WINDOWS HAD BEEN CLEARED A LOT MORE THAN 
PREVIOUSLY; HOWEVER THERE WERE STILL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE 
MIDDLE SECTION OF THE WINDOW  
 

ON EACH OF THE TWO (2) BREACH OF CONDITIONS LETTERS SENT, MR HASSAN 
WAS ADVISED SHOULD FURTHER BREACHES BE FOUND AT THE PREMISES, THE 
LICENSING AUTHORITY WILL SEEK TO REVIEW THE LICENCE. WHICH COULD 
RESULT IN REVOCATION. 

 
THE WARNING LETTER SENT IN OCTOBER 2021 WAS SENT TO A PREVIOUS 
PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER, HOWEVER THE PREMISES WAS NOT COMPLYING 
WITH THE CONDITION REGARDING AN UNOBSTRUCTED VIEW AT ALL TIMES INTO 
THE LICENSABLE AREA OF THE PREMISES. 

 
THE CONTINUAL BREACH UNDERMINES THE LICENSING OBJECTIVE, PREVENTION 
OF CRIME & DISORDER AND THIS DOES CAUSE THE LICENSING AUTHORITY SOME 
SERIOUS CONCERNS AFTER HAVING GIVEN MR HASSAN TWO (2) PREVIOUS 
WRITTEN WARNINGS ALONG WITH ONE (1) PIECE OF VERBAL ADVICE. 

 

24



                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the 

premises before 

 

 

 

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

                
 

 

 

 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 

and when you made them 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

25



 

  

                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ 

yes 

 

• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 

as appropriate 

 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 

application will be rejected 

 

       
 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

 

Signature      

………………  

 

Date             25 November 2025 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Capacity      LICENSING ASSISTANT – LICENSING AUTHORITY 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 

associated with this application (please read guidance note 6) 

      

Post town 

      

Post Code 

      

Telephone number (if any)  01432 261761 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional) licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk  

 

 

26

mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk


Notes for Guidance  

 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 

27





 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 

Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

 

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Part A - Premises Licence  

 
Premises licence number PR01893 (App to Transfer & Vary Premises DPS)  
 
Part 1 - Premises details  
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  

Magazin Timisoara 
22 Commercial Road 
 

Post town  Hereford Postcode  HR1 2BD 

Telephone number  07425 148850 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence (All indoors unless otherwise stated) 

 
Sale/Supply of Alcohol (Consumption off the premises) 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  

Sale/Supply of Alcohol 
Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 02:00 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises  

Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 02:00 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 

Consumption off the premises 
 

 
Part 2  
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  

Hemen Nigeen Hassan 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  

Not Applicable 
 

 

29



 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 

Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises the supply of alcohol  

Hemen Nigeen Hassan 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  

Licence number: PL3986 
Issuing authority: Herefordshire Council  
 

 
Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  
 

Age verification 

  (1)   The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 

alcohol.  

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 

the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 

policy.  

(3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 

years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 

before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and 

either—  

(a) a holographic mark, or  

(b) an ultraviolet feature.  

Below Cost Price 

 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  

Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-  

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 

premises licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 

licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

30



 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 

Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

 

 

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  
 
General 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 
Spirits of high ABV will be sold from behind the counter. 
 
CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of 
EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. 
Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and all 
areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs. 
Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date stamped, 
recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 28 days. 
The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is 
capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in recordable media format and be able to 
produce it to a Police Officer and/or an authorised Local Authority employee on demand.  
The CCTV equipment shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the DPS or other 
responsible named individual. An operational log report must be maintained endorsed by signature, 
indicating the system has been checked and is compliant, in the event of any failings actions taken 
are to be recorded.  
In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST 
report the failure to the Police on contact number 101 and Council Licensing Department 
immediately. 
 
An incident log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to an 
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police, which must 
record the following: 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue (where relevant to the licensing objectives) 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received (where relevant to the licensing objectives) 
(d)  any incidents of disorder  
(e) any faults with the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment 

 (f)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(g)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency services, noting time, date and purpose and 

those officials by name. 
 
The DPS shall inspect and sign the incident log monthly to ensure that it is being properly 
maintained. 
 
All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol retailing to the minimum 
standard of BIIAB Level 1 or any equivalent training course within 1 month of commencing 
employment at the premises. Where there are existing staff this training shall be completed within 3 
months of the date that this condition first appears on the licence. No person shall be authorised to 
sell or supply alcohol until this training is completed. Refresher training will be conducted at 12 
monthly intervals. Training records shall be kept on the premises and produced to the police of an 
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading 
Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand. 
Receipts and invoices for all tobacco and alcohol products offered for sale or stored on the 
premises must be retained for a rolling period of 12 calendar months, kept within a readily 
accessible file and must be made available upon immediate and reasonable request by any Police 
Officer, Customs Officer or other authorised person as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003. 
 

31



 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 

Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

 

 

The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the 
licensable area of the premises. In respect of any street facing the windows, any obstruction will be 
restricted to the top 25% of the window and the bottom 25% of the window in each case. (Window 
refers to the whole area covered by glass). This will mean that at least 50% of all windows and 
100% of all doors looking into the premises from Commercial Road are clear of obstruction.  No 
obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass surfaces of doors and 
windows, as well as any other item within the shop which obstructs the view through the window. 
 
Public Safety 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
 
The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and kept at 
the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised person’ (as defined by 
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the police or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of 
Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall also 
be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any bar 
advertising the scheme operated.  
 
A written register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who have been 
unable to provide required Identification to prove their age. Such records shall be kept for a period 
of 12 months and will be collected on a daily basis by the Designated Premises Supervisor and 
produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand. 
 
No adult entertainment or services or activities must take place at the premises (Adult 
Entertainment includes, but is not restricted to, such entertainment or services which would 
generally include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-table, or pole-dancing, performances involving 
feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment 
involving strong and offensive language). 
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
Not applicable 
 
Annex 4 - Plans  
As attached submitted 06.12.2019 

32



 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 

Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

 

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Part B - Premises licence summary  

 
Premises licence number PR01893 (App to Transfer & Vary Premises DPS) 
 
Premises details 
  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  

Magazin Timisoara 
22 Commercial Road 
 

Post town  Hereford Postcode  HR1 2BD 

Telephone number  07425 148850 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence (All indoors unless otherwise stated) 

 
Sale/Supply of Alcohol (Consumption off the premises) 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  

Sale/Supply of Alcohol 
Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 02:00 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises  

Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 02:00 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 

Consumption off the premises 
 

 
Part 2  
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  

Hemen Nigeen Hassan 
 

 
 
 

 

 

33



 

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council 

Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  

Not Applicable 
 

 
 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of 
alcohol 

Hemen Nigeen Hassan 
 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy 

A written register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who have 
been unable to provide required Identification to prove their age 

No adult entertainment or services or activities shall take place at the premises. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



 

8 St Owen Street, Hereford, HR1 2PJ 

herefordshire.gov.uk | facebook: hfdscouncil | twitter: @hfdscouncil | instagram: hfdscouncil 

. 

OFFICIAL 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Dear Mr Rassual 

LICENSING ACT 2003 – UNAUTHORISED LICENSABLE ACTIVITY 
 
Magazin Timisoara, 22 Commercial Road, Hereford. HR1 2BD 
 
I refer to the premises licence issued in respect of the above premises.  
 
A premise licence is issued authorising the use of the premises for certain licensable activities, 
the times of operating and the conditions that are to be complied with. 
 
I am in receipt of a complaint that members of the public are unable to see into the shop and that 
the windows are obstructed. 
 
As you should be aware your licence has a condition whereby it states the following; 
 
The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into 
the licensable area of the premises. In respect of any street facing the windows, any 
obstruction will be restricted to the top 25% of the window and the bottom 25% of the 
window in each case. (Window refers to the whole area covered by glass). This will mean 
that at least 50% of all windows and 100% of all doors looking into the premises from 
Commercial Road are clear of obstruction.  No obstruction includes any permanent or 
temporary signage placed on glass surfaces of doors and windows, as well as any other 
item within the shop which obstructs the view through the window. 
 
It is alleged that the windows either side of the door are obstructed with stickers and/or produce. 
 
It is an offence under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 for a premise to carry on any 
licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise than and in accordance with an authorisation (a 

premises licence). Any person found guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary 
conviction to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months or to an unlimited fine, or both.  
 
I must advise you that the non-compliance of the condition means the licence is invalid. The 
authority will tolerate a continual breach of this condition.  
 
I must advise you that if the condition is not complied with within 7 days of the date of this letter, 
then the authority would have no alternative but to consider further action. This could include a 
further review of the licence with a view to revocation, an objection to the variation recently 
submitted or alternatively a prosecution through the court for breach of the licence. 
 
I hope that neither action will be necessary and that you will comply with the terms of the licence. 
 

Directorate/Division: Economy and Place 

Team: Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

Please ask for: Licensing 

Direct line: 01432 261761 

Email: licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Date: 5 October 2021 

Samman Rassual 
XXXX 
XXXX 
XXXX 

 

35

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/hfdscouncil
https://twitter.com/HfdsCouncil
https://www.instagram.com/hfdscouncil/
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/


OFFICIAL 

Yours faithfully, 

LICENSING TECHNICAL OFFICER ENVIRONMENTAL 

HEALTH & TRADING STANDARDS 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

Cc West Mercia Police

36



OFFICIAL 

Photo taken 20 October 2021 and emailed 21 October 2021

37





Herefordshire Council, Licensing Department, Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

herefordshire.gov.uk | facebook: hfdscouncil | twitter: @hfdscouncil | instagram: hfdscouncil 

. 

OFFICIAL 

(a) all crimes reported to the venue (where relevant to the licensing objectives)
(b) all ejections of patrons
(c) any complaints received (where relevant to the licensing objectives)
(d) any incidents of disorder
(e) any faults with the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment
(f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency services, noting time, date and purpose and

those officials by name.

The DPS shall inspect and sign the incident log monthly to ensure that it is being properly 
maintained. 

All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol retailing to the 
minimum standard of BIIAB Level 1 or any equivalent training course within 1 month of 
commencing employment at the premises. Where there are existing staff this training shall be 
completed within 3 months of the date that this condition first appears on the licence. No person 
shall be authorised to sell or supply alcohol until this training is completed. Refresher training will 
be conducted at 12 monthly intervals. Training records shall be kept on the premises and 

Directorate/Division: Economy and Environment 

Team: Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

Please ask for: Licensing 

Direct line: 01432 261761 

Email: licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Date: 8 September 2025 

Hemen Nigeen Hassan 
XXXXX
XXXXX 
XXXXX
XXXXX 

Dear Hemen Nigeen Hassan, 

Licensing Act 2003 

Ref: MAGAZIN TIMISOARA, 22 COMMERCIAL ROAD, HEREFORD. HR1 2BD 

I refer to the premises licence issued in respect of the above premises. 

A premise licence is issued authorising the use of the premises for certain licensable activities, 
the times of operating and the conditions that are to be complied with. 

On the evening of Friday 5 September 2025 members of the Licensing Team visited your 
premises to carry out a licence inspection.  Whilst at the premises, it became apparent the 
conditions on the licence were not being complied with.   
Compliance with the conditions of your licence is not optional but compulsory.   
The conditions that were not complied with are as follows: 

Prevention of Crime & Disorder 

Spirits of high ABV will be sold from behind the counter 

An incident log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to an 
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police, which must 
record the following: 

39

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/hfdscouncil
https://twitter.com/HfdsCouncil
https://www.instagram.com/hfdscouncil/
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk


OFFICIAL 

produced to the police of an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand. 

The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the 
licensable area of the premises. In respect of any street facing the windows, any obstruction will 
be restricted to the top 25% of the window and the bottom 25% of the window in each case. 
(Window refers to the whole area covered by glass). This will mean that at least 50% of all 
windows and 100% of all doors looking into the premises from Commercial Road are clear of 
obstruction.  No obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass 
surfaces of doors and windows, as well as any other item within the shop which obstructs the 
view through the window 

Protection of Children from Harm 

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and kept 
at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised person’ (as 
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the police or an authorised Trading 
Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less 
than 32 font bold) shall also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least 
one location behind any bar advertising the scheme operated.  

A written register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who have been 
unable to provide required Identification to prove their age. Such records shall be kept for a period 
of 12 months and will be collected on a daily basis by the Designated Premises Supervisor and 
produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 
2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand. 

You must rectify this situation immediately 

The council or any authorised person may carry out internet research, telephone research, 
monitoring and unannounced site visits to ensure compliance with the legislation.  This may 
include evidential electronic images such as photographs or video to assist with our enquiries and 
should further breaches be found then this Authority may take more formal action against you, 
which may include prosecution which on summary conviction can attracted a period of six (6) 
months imprisonment and or an unlimited fine. The other option would be for the Authority to 
further review the licence which could result in revocation. 

Yours faithfully 

LICENSING DEPARTMENT – HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & TRADING STANDARDS 

CC: WEST MERCIA POLICE & HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL TRADING STANDARDS 

40



Herefordshire Council, Licensing Department, Plough Lane, Hereford. HR4 0LE 

herefordshire.gov.uk | facebook: hfdscouncil | twitter: @hfdscouncil | instagram: hfdscouncil 

. 

OFFICIAL 

Directorate/Division: Economy and Environment 

Team: Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

Please ask for: Licensing 

Direct line: 01432 261761 

Email: licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Date: 24 September 2025 

Hemen Nigeen Hassan 
XXXXXX 
XXXXXX
XXXXXX 
XXXXXX

Dear Hemen Nigeen Hassan, 

Licensing Act 2003 

Ref: MAGAZIN TIMISOARA, 22 COMMERCIAL ROAD, HEREFORD. HR1 2BD 

I refer to the premises licence issued in respect of the above premises. 

A premise licence is issued authorising the use of the premises for certain licensable activities, 
the times of operating and the conditions that are to be complied with. 

West Mercia Police Licensing Officers visited your premises on Tuesday 23 September 2025 to 
ensure compliance with your licensing requirements and conditions. 

It is disappointing to note that the following conditions were still not being complied with, despite 
our in-person discussion with you on 5 September 2025 and our letter to you on 8 September 
2025 

Prevention of Crime & Disorder 

Spirits of high ABV will be sold from behind the counter 

The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the 
licensable area of the premises. In respect of any street facing the windows, any obstruction will 
be restricted to the top 25% of the windows and the bottom 25% of the window in each case. 
(Window refers to the whole area covered by glass). This will mean that at least 50% of all 
windows and 100% of all doors looking into the premises from Commercial Road are clear of 
obstruction.  No obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass 
surfaces of doors and windows, as well as any other item within the shop which obstructs the 
view through the window 

As discussed with you on 5 September 2025, all spirits of 15% ABV or higher must be displayed 
behind the counter and not on display by the entrance door.  It was also discussed with you that 
you had to remove the display shelves from the window and at least 50% of all windows and 
100% of all doors looking into the premises from Commercial Road are clear of obstruction.  That 
meant obstruction included any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass surfaces of 
doors and windows, as well as any other item within the shop which obstructs the view through 
the window. 

You must rectify this situation immediately 

41

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/hfdscouncil
https://twitter.com/HfdsCouncil
https://www.instagram.com/hfdscouncil/
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk


OFFICIAL 

The council or any authorised person may carry out internet research, telephone research, 
monitoring and unannounced site visits to ensure compliance with the legislation.  This may 
include evidential electronic images such as photographs or video to assist with our enquiries. 

Should further breaches be found at the premises, the Licensing Authority will seek to review the 
licence. which could result in revocation. 

Yours faithfully 

LICENSING DEPARTMENT – HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & TRADING STANDARDS 

CC: WEST MERCIA POLICE 

42



 

OFFICIAL 

 
 
From: XXXXXXXX  
Sent: 25 November 2025 14:11 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Magazin - fourth breach  
 

 

43



 

OFFICIAL 

44



 

OFFICIAL 

45



 

OFFICIAL 

 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

46



47



48



49



MG11 

 RESTRICTED (when complete)  

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

Signature:   Signature witnessed by:   
 
2013 d_rey001/01/26 

 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9; Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, s.5B) 

 

 URN:  

 
Statement of:  Duncan Reynolds 
 
Age if under 18:  Over 18 Occupation:  Police Officer 
 
This statement (consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and 
belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have 
wilfully stated anything in it, which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 
 
Signature  Date:  17th January 2026 

 
 
I am the Safer Neighbourhood Sergeant for Hereford City Centre which is a position I 
have held for over 10 years. 
 
West Mercia Police is focusing Policing attention to our areas of most demand for 
Anti-Social Behaviour and Serious Violence, using the Hot Spot Policing tactic. 
One of three small locations within the City Centre have been designated a ‘Hotspot’, 
including: 
 
Commercial Street / Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BT  
 
The supporting data for this is: 
Commercial Road: 39% of offence volume, 38% of harm 
Commercial Street: 29% of offence volume, 29% of harm 
 
Total: 68% of offence volume, 67% of harm 
 
Broken down as: 
VIOLENCE WITHOUT INJURY 49.55% 
VIOLENCE WITH INJURY 48.20% 
ROBBERY - PERSONAL 2.25% 
AS-Nuisance 87.50% 
AS-Personal 11.25% 
AS-Environmental 1.25%" 
 
The peak times for the offence types are: 
Serious Violence: 18:00 - 06:00 hours 
Anti-Social Behaviour: 15:00 - 05:00 hours 

 
 

The specific area has been produced by our analysts in the map below: 

50



MG11 

 RESTRICTED (when complete)  

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Statement of:  Duncan REYNOLDS URN:  

 

 

Signature:  D J REYNOLDS 

2010/11 d_rey001/01/26 

 
 

 

There are a number of different Policing and Partner Agency tactics being employed 
within the Hotspots to reduce the crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour. 
 
One such tactic is to conduct Police and Multi Agency visits and inspections to 
businesses which have been identified as a result of reports and intelligence. 
 
One of these businesses is MAGAZIN TIMISOARA, COMMERCIAL ROAD, 
HEREFORD, HR1 2BB. 
 
 

51



MG11 

 RESTRICTED (when complete)  

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Statement of:  Duncan REYNOLDS URN:  

 

 

Signature:   

2010/11 d_rey001/01/26 

TIMISOARA has featured in a number of Police investigations and submissions of 
intelligence in the last couple of years which contribute to identifying issues with the 
business and those individuals that run it. 
 
In 2024 we received information that TIMISOARA was buying stolen goods from 
known shoplifters. 
 
In 2023 we received information that persons running the business were selling 
drugs, including cocaine to people in the Nighttime Economy. 
 
In 2023 we received information that illegal tobacco and vapes were being sold within 
the store. 
 
In 2024 we received information that alcohol was being sold to underage girls. 
 
There have also been several Police investigations in 2025 at the premises which 
include thefts, criminal damage, threats to kill, public order, racial abuse.  Many of 
these incidents involve altercations between staff and customers which have resulted 
in criminal investigations.   
 
On these occasions the customers have been under the influence of drink and drugs 
and even when the store or the staff have been recorded as victims, there are 
concerns in the level of aggression and behaviour displayed by staff towards the 
suspects of the offences which have either caused or escalated the situation. 
 
Very few of the investigations have concluded with a positive outcome because of 
evidential difficulties such as the behaviour of staff or an issue with Police obtaining 
CCTV from within the store. 
 
In my opinion, the intelligence we receive and the issues at the premises are 
disproportionate to other similar businesses around the City Centre and support the 
view that the premises are not effectively managed. 
 
The sale of alcohol to underage females will directly lead to anti-social behaviour and 
potentially put the safety of young girls at risk of exploitation, being a victim of sexual 
offences and may lead to further disorder and violence at or near the location. 
 
I am supporting the review and potential revocation of the licence of MAGAZIN 
TIMISOARA, from my role as Sergeant for the Safer Neighbourhood Team in 
Hereford City Centre, to reduce the ASB and violent offences occurring in the 
location during the key times identified by the analysis of the supporting data. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



 

OFFICIAL 

From: LConsult@hwfire.org.uk  
Sent: 11 December 2025 11:41 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Cc: LConsult <LConsult@hwfire.org.uk> 
Subject: Review Application - Magazin Timisoara 

 
 
Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service support the review of the licence for 
Magazin Timisoara. There are several Fire Safety Deficiencies that require action within the 
premises, and at present Mr Hassan, is not co-operating.  
 
Thanks 
  
Charly Perkins  AIFireE |  Fire Safety Inspector  |  Protection Department  
Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Service  |    

 

  

 

 
 
  
  
  
Details of how the Service manages your personal data can be found on our website Privacy Policy  
 
If you have made a Freedom of Information or Subject Access Request and have received an 
automated out of office message please redirect your email to 
informationrequests@hwfire.org.uk 

53

https://www.hwfire.org.uk/privacy-policy/
mailto:informationrequests@hwfire.org.uk
https://www.hwfire.org.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/hwfire
https://twitter.com/hwfire
https://www.firefighterscharity.org.uk/donate?utm_source=hwfrs&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=donate-email-footer
https://www.hwfire.org.uk/advice/sprinklers/


 

 

Tel 0345 122 4454 
Web www.hwfire.org.uk 
Email info@hwfire.org.uk 

Headquarters 
Hindlip Park 
Worcester 
WR3 8SP 

Chief Fire Officer / Chief Executive 
Jonathon Pryce KFSM, MBA, Dip, GIFireE 

C
h
i
e
f 
F
i
r
e 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r 
/ 
C
h
i
e
f 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e 

J
o
n
a
t
h
o
n 
P
r
y
c
e 
K
F
S
M
, 
M
B
A
, 
D
i
p
, 
G
I
F
i
r
e
E 

 

 
 

 
 

Magazin Timisoara Limited 
22 Commercial Road 
Hereford 
HR1 2BD 
 
For the attention of Hemen Hassan 
Sent via email:-  

 
Dear Sir 
 
The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
ACTIONS TO ADDRESS FIRE SAFETY MATTERS 
Magazin Timisoara, 22 Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BD    
 
Following the recent fire safety inspection carried out at your premises on 17 September 2025, I 
am writing to advise you of the significant findings of the Inspecting Officer (see schedule attached).   
 
My inspections of premises are based on a sampling inspection of your fire safety arrangements 
and may not have identified every deficiency.  In addition to addressing the matters identified in the 
attached schedule, you also remain responsible for reviewing your fire risk assessment, considering 
the adequacy of your existing arrangements and any extra measures that are needed to safeguard 
people. 
 
TIMESCALES FOR COMPLETION 
 
You should complete the work outlined in the schedule as soon as possible, balancing the need for 
safety against the demands on your business or undertaking.  I will re-inspect in approximately 3 
month(s) from the date of this letter.  You should complete the required actions on the schedule 
before that time. 
 
CONSEQUENCE OF NON-COMPLIANCE 
 
If you do not complete the work in the schedule before my next visit, or I find that safety provisions 

have deteriorated, the authority can serve an enforcement notice on you.  Failure to comply with an 

enforcement notice would be a criminal offence for which you could be prosecuted. In serious cases, 

the Authority may also prosecute for substantive breaches of the Fire Safety Order with or without 

also serving an enforcement notice. 

 
Please inform us at the earliest opportunity of any likely delay in completion. 
 
If you want to ask questions about this letter and schedule please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Yours faithfully 

Authorised Fire Safety Inspector 
on behalf of Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority 
Enc: Schedule of Works  

Our reference W4611685/207910/CP/cnl 

Please ask for Charly Perkins 

Email k 

Date 17 September 2025 

  BFS04 

 

54



 

 

 

 

File Ref: W4611685 
HEREFORD & WORCESTER FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 
 
Premises: Magazin Timisoara,  22 Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BD   
 
Fire Safety Inspector: Charly Perkins 
 
Date of Inspection:  17 September 2025 
 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
Note to this schedule:- 
 

• The Government guidance most suitable to your premises is Fire Safety Risk 
Assessment :  

- Offices and Shops. 

• Before you make certain changes to your premises you may have to apply for approval 
from statutory bodies and/or others having interest in them. 

• If you have any doubt about the need for approval you should ask the relevant body, 
for example, you may have to apply for approval from Building Control to make material 
alterations.  You might also need the property owner’s permission. 

 
 
1. Fire Safety Matters under Article 9 (1) – Failure to carry out a fire risk assessment  
 
There was no evidence that a suitable and sufficient fire risk assessment has been carried out.   
A guide to choosing a competent fire risk assessor can be found at   
https://firesectorfederation.co.uk/fire-risk-assessment/  
 
Required Action  
 
You must carry out a fire risk assessment.  The appropriate Fire Risk Assessment Guide relevant 
to your premises Offices and Shops can be found at www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-
responsibilities/fire-risk-assessments. You can also find local fire safety advice on our website at 
www.hwfire.org.uk/safety-and-advice/business-safety. 
 
Your fire risk assessment must also address the deficiencies I have identified during my 
inspection which are detailed in this schedule. 
 
Your risk assessment is to be reviewed frequently in order to keep it up to date and particularly if:-  

 

• there is a reason to suspect that it is no longer valid; or 

• there has been a significant change in the matters to which it relates including when the 
premises, work processes, or organisation of the work undergoes significant changes, 
extensions, or conversions. 

 
The responsible person must take action or make changes identified as necessary from the fire risk 
assessment.  
 
 
 
 
 

55

https://firesectorfederation.co.uk/fire-risk-assessment/
https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-risk-assessments
https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-risk-assessments
https://www.hwfire.org.uk/safety-and-advice/business-safety


 

 

 

 

2. Fire Safety Matters under Article 11  – Fire safety arrangements 
 

Fire safety arrangements are inadequate:-  
 

• Arrangements for planning, organising, controlling, monitoring, reviewing and recording 
of your fire precautions are inadequate, evidenced by failings identified during our 
inspection and detailed in this schedule. 
 

Required Action  
 
The responsible person must make and give effect to arrangements for the effective planning, 
organisation, control, monitoring, reviewing and recording of the preventive and protective fire 
safety measures.  To achieve this, you should ensure there are appropriate arrangements for: 
 

• allocating areas of control, supervision and tasks to specific post holders; 

• planning of staff training; 

• systems for communicating relevant fire safety information to visitors; 

• a system for identifying and reporting defects; 

• plans for regular review of your fire risk assessment; 

• systems of monitoring of fire precautions including recording the inspection and testing of 
fire alarm system, emergency lighting, fire resisting doors, fire extinguishers, sprinklers, 
dry risers, green release boxes, Automatic Opening Vents, suppression systems are not 
complete.  

 
 

3. Fire Safety Matters under Article 8 – Inadequate measures to prevent fire 
 
Your measures for reducing the likelihood of fire occurring are not adequate; in particular:-  
 

• Portable electrical appliances are not inspected or maintained, so far as is reasonably 
practicable, to prevent danger.  
 

Required Action  
 

• Portable electrical appliances should be maintained in order to prevent danger. Guidance is 
available on the HSE Website – Electrical Safety – Portable Appliance Testing and can be 
found at PAT (Portable appliance testing).   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56

https://www.hse.gov.uk/electricity/faq-portable-appliance-testing.htm


 

 

 

 

4. Fire Safety Matters under Article 15 – Emergency procedures and drills 
 
Appropriate emergency procedures, including fire drills, to be followed in the event of serious and 
imminent danger, have not been established. 
 

• The existing procedures do not include sufficiently detailed plans to ensure all people are 
safely evacuated in the event of fire. simultaneous evacuation drills are not carried out.  

 
Required Action  

 

• Establish procedures, suited to the premises and people who may be on the premises, to 
ensure safe evacuation; regular fire drills should be undertaken to test and practise these 
procedures. Additional drills may need to be carried out to ensure evacuation plans are 
suitable for fires occurring in different parts of the building, affecting different escape routes, 
and at any time of day or night.  

• Ensure sufficient competent persons are nominated, available and trained to implement 
emergency procedures and evacuation.  

• Make a record of emergency plans, staff training and drills undertaken as part of your fire 
safety management arrangements. 
 

 
5. Fire Safety Matters under Article 17(1) – Maintenance   
 

• The fire alarm system is not subject to a suitable system of maintenance.   

• The emergency lighting system is not subject to a suitable system of maintenance.   

• The fire extinguishers are not subject to a suitable system of maintenance.     
 

Required Action 
The premises and any facilities, equipment and devices, provided to safeguard people from fire, 
must be subject to a suitable system of maintenance and maintained in an efficient state, in efficient 
working order and good repair; specifically: 
 

• The fire alarm system should be subject to a suitable system of maintenance – guidelines 
for this are detailed in the current BS 5839. 

• The emergency lighting system should be subject to a suitable system of maintenance – 
guidelines for this are detailed in the current BS 5266. 

• Firefighting equipment should be subject to a suitable system maintenance – guidelines for 
this are detailed in the current BS 5306. 

 
Records should be kept of your testing and maintenance of fire safety provisions as this can provide 
evidence of your procedures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



 

 

 

 

 
6. Fire Safety Matters under Article 21 – Training 
 
Fire safety training provided to employees is inadequate.  
 
Required Action  

 

Employees must be provided with adequate fire safety training:- 

• at the time they are first employed, repeated regularly and 

• on being exposed to new or increased risks because of:- 
▪ being transferred or a change of responsibility; 
▪ introduction of new work equipment or a change to existing equipment; 
▪ introduction of new technology; 
▪ introduction of new systems of work, or change to existing systems of work. 

 
You must ensure that the safety training provided:- 
 

• includes suitable and sufficient instruction and training on the appropriate precautions and 
actions to be taken in order to safeguard themselves and others;  

• is adapted to take account of any new or changed risks to the safety of employees         
concerned; 

• is provided in a manner appropriate to the risk identified by the risk assessment ; and 

• takes place during working hours. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58



 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Measures to prevent fire 
 
Electrical appliances, particularly white goods (such as washing machines, fridge’s, dishwashers, 
freezers) should be registered with manufacturers (s) to ensure you are informed of any 
manufacturing fault/product recall at the earliest opportunity. You can register for free at – 
https://www.registermyappliance.org.uk   
 
Liaison and contact with emergency services 
 
You should make arrangements for the provision of information to the fire and rescue service, for 
use on arrival and during the course of any fire emergency. This should include provision of a “grab 
bag” which contains items such as but not limited to:- 

• An up to date plan of the building which identifies electricity, gas and water isolation 
points and the location of all known hazards such as gas cylinders 

• An emergency contacts list 

• A copy of the emergency plan 
 
Liaison and contact with emergency services 
 
For a fire alarm and fire detection system to give the maximum benefit, the fire and rescue service 
needs to be summoned as quickly as possible on every occasion that it operates in the event of a 
fire, unless, in order to avoid false alarms being passed to the fire and rescue service, filtering 
arrangements are appropriate. Since the objective of a Category L system is evacuation of 
occupants, rather than protection of property, manual summoning of the fire and rescue service by 
occupants might, again, suffice. However, if the early attendance of the fire and rescue service is 
likely to be essential to life safety in the event of fire (e.g. in hospitals and residential care homes), 
a secondary, automatic means of transmission might be warranted, unless there are adequate 
arrangements to ensure that there is no delay at any time in manual summoning of the fire and 
rescue service by occupants. In practice, automatic transmission of fire alarm signals is considered 
necessary in the case of residential care premises. 
 
For further guidance see BS 5839-1. 

 
Escape routes and exits 
 
Some wiring systems (cabling & trunking) are not satisfactorily fixed to walls / ceilings to prevent 
cables falling into the path of persons evacuating (or firefighters entering) the building during a fire 
situation. 
 
BS 7671 (IET Wiring Regulations Eighteenth Edition), includes a requirement that wiring systems 
in escape routes shall have fire resisting supports. A suitable guidance document would be BEAMA 
(British Electrotechnical and Allied Manufacturers' Association). The purpose of this guidance 
document is to aid installers to select and erect wiring systems to prevent cables from premature 
collapse due to the effects of heat caused by fire. Your fire risk assessment should identify areas 
where cables require retaining with fire resisting supports. 
 

• NOTE 1: Non-metallic cable trunking or other non-metallic means of support can fail 
when subject to either direct flame or hot products of combustion. This may lead to 
wiring systems hanging across access or egress routes such that they hinder 
evacuation and firefighting activities.  

• NOTE 2: This precludes the use of non-metallic cable clips, cable ties or trunking as 
the sole means of support. For example, where non-metallic trunking is used, a 

59

https://www.registermyappliance.org.uk/


 

 

 

 

suitable fire-resistant means of support/retention must be provided to prevent cables 
falling out in the event of fire.”  

 
Sprinkler Systems 

 

Hereford and Worcester Fire & Rescue Service is committed to putting our communities first, 

protecting life and property and supporting business resilience.  In line with this, HWFRS endorses 

the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) position statement on sprinklers, that “they are the most 

effective way to ensure that fires are suppressed or even extinguished before the fire service can 

arrive”.  As such part of HWFRS Protection Strategy is to promote the introduction and use of 

sprinklers both commercially and domestically. As such part of HWFRS Protection Strategy is to 

promote the introduction and use of sprinklers both commercially and domestically. 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND DEFINITIONS 

 
Fire Resisting (Fire Resistance) 
The ability of a component or construction of a building to satisfy, for a stated period of time, some 
or all of the appropriate criteria specified in the relevant British Standard. 
 
Intumescent Strips 
A strip of material placed along the door edges (excluding the bottom edge) or frame, that will react 
to heat by expanding to form a seal to the passage of hot gases and flame. 
 
Smoke Seal 
A flexible strip of material (often used in conjunction with an intumescent strip) placed along the 
door edges or frame to limit the spread of cold smoke during the early stages of fire. 
 
Self Closing Device 
A device which is capable of closing the door from any angle and against any latch fitted to the 
door.  Rising butt hinges are not acceptable. 
 
Automatic Door Release 
A device, linked to (or operated by the sound of) the fire alarm system that when fitted to a fire 
resisting self closing door, enables it to be held open during normal working conditions. 
 
Emergency Escape Lighting 
That part of the emergency lighting system provided for use when the electricity supply to the normal 
lighting fails so as to ensure that the means of escape can be safely and effectively used at all 
times. 
 
Risk Assessment 
An organised appraisal of your activities and premises to enable you to identify potential fire 
hazards, and to decide who (including employees and visitors) might be in danger in the event of 
fire, and their location.  You will then evaluate the risks arising from the hazards and decide whether 
the existing fire precautions are adequate, or whether more needs to be done.  It will be necessary 
for you to record your findings (if you have five or more employees) and to review and revise when 
necessary. 
 

  

60

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnfcc.org.uk%2Four-services%2Fposition-statements%2Fautomatic-water-suppression-systems-policy-statement%2F&data=05%7C02%7CKLambourn%40hwfire.org.uk%7C18463c0b90e642a4fefe08dd99f0bbe4%7C09c53cc0fd994f8cbc79935df9539402%7C0%7C0%7C638835981500020606%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kN%2B0DvQQOOgdwKVEiigxQaM%2B32vy3wP6lKIYWxUe3JM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnfcc.org.uk%2Four-services%2Fposition-statements%2Fautomatic-water-suppression-systems-policy-statement%2F&data=05%7C02%7CKLambourn%40hwfire.org.uk%7C18463c0b90e642a4fefe08dd99f0bbe4%7C09c53cc0fd994f8cbc79935df9539402%7C0%7C0%7C638835981500064914%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ds1GECO82JCIfAvLTwyNSakgfvsCaCOGtKzHhTdDF8Y%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 

 

The content of the attached letter is extremely important and requires you to take action.  
You are strongly advised to get the information translated as there may be legal 
consequences – do not ignore it. 
 

 

Albanian Përmbajtja e letrës së bashkangjitur është jashtëzakonisht e 
rëndësishme dhe kërkon që ju të merrni masa.  Ju këshillojmë fuqimisht 
që të përktheni informacionin pasi mund të ketë pasoja ligjore – mos e 
injoroni. 

 

Arabic   محتوى الرسالة المرفقة بالغ الأهمية ويتطلب منك اتخاذ إجراء. ننصحك بشدة بترجمة المعلومات، فقد
فلا تتجاهلها.تترتب على ذلك عواقب قانونية،   

 

Bulgarian Sŭdŭrzhanieto na prikachenoto pismo e izklyuchitelno vazhno i nalaga 
da predpriemete deĭstviya.  Silno vi sŭvetvame da poluchite prevedena 
informatsiya, tŭĭ kato mozhe da ima pravni posleditsi – ne ya 
prenebregvaĭte. 

 

Chinese 所附信件的內容極為重要，需要您採取行動。  強烈建議您翻譯該訊息，

因為可能會產生法律後果——不要忽視它。 

 

Croatian Sadržaj priloženog pisma je izuzetno važan i zahtijeva od vas da nešto 
poduzmete.  Toplo vam savjetujemo da prevedete informacije jer mogu 
postojati pravne posljedice – nemojte to zanemariti. 

 

Czech Obsah přiloženého dopisu je nesmírně důležitý a vyžaduje, abyste 
podnikli kroky.  Důrazně vám doporučujeme, abyste si informace 
nechali přeložit, protože to může mít právní důsledky – neignorujte to. 

 

Farsi  محتوای نامه پيوست فوق العاده مهم است و شما را ملزم به اقدام می کند.  اکيداً به شما توصيه می
آن را ناديده نگيريد.  -شود که اطلاعات را ترجمه کنيد زيرا ممکن است عواقب قانونی داشته باشد   

 

French Le contenu de la lettre ci-jointe est extrêmement important et nécessite 
votre intervention. Il est fortement recommandé de faire traduire ces 
informations, car elles peuvent avoir des conséquences juridiques ; ne 
les ignorez pas. 

 

German Der Inhalt des beigefügten Schreibens ist äußerst wichtig und erfordert 
Ihr Handeln. Wir empfehlen Ihnen dringend, die Informationen 
übersetzen zu lassen, da dies rechtliche Konsequenzen haben kann. 
Ignorieren Sie dies nicht. 

 

Greek Το περιεχόμενο της συνημμένης επιστολής είναι εξαιρετικά σημαντικό 
και απαιτεί από εσάς να λάβετε μέτρα.  Σας συμβουλεύουμε 
ανεπιφύλακτα να μεταφράσετε τις πληροφορίες καθώς ενδέχεται να 
υπάρξουν νομικές συνέπειες – μην το αγνοήσετε. 

 

Hebrew .מומלץ בחום לתרגם את   תוכן המכתב המצורף חשוב ביותר ודורש מכם לפעול
אל תתעלם ממנו.  -המידע מכיוון שעשויות להיות השלכות משפטיות   

 

Italian Il contenuto della lettera allegata è estremamente importante e richiede 
un intervento da parte vostra. Vi consigliamo vivamente di far tradurre le 
informazioni, poiché potrebbero esserci conseguenze legali: non 
ignoratele. 

 

Latvian Pievienotās vēstules saturs ir ārkārtīgi svarīgs un liek jums rīkoties.  
Jums ir ļoti ieteicams iegūt informācijas tulkošanu, jo tam var būt 
juridiskas sekas – neignorējiet to. 

 

Lithuanian Prisegto laiško turinys yra nepaprastai svarbus ir reikalauja imtis 
veiksmų.  Primygtinai rekomenduojame informaciją išversti, nes tai gali 
turėti teisinių pasekmių – neignoruokite jos. 

61



 

 

 

 

 

Polish Treść załączonego listu jest niezwykle ważna i wymaga podjęcia przez 
Ciebie działań. Zdecydowanie zaleca się przetłumaczenie informacji, 
ponieważ mogą wystąpić konsekwencje prawne – nie ignoruj tego. 

 

Punjabi ਨੱਥੀ ਪੱਤਰ ਦੀ ਸਮੱਗਰੀ ਬਹਤੁ ਮਹੱਤਵਪੂਰਨ ਹੈ ਅਤੇ ਤੁਹਾਨੂੂੰ  ਕਾਰਵਾਈ ਕਰਨ ਦੀ ਲੋੜ ਹੈ। 

ਤੁਹਾਨੂੂੰ  ਪੁਰਜੋਰ ਸਲਾਹ ਦਦੱਤੀ ਜਾਾਂਦੀ ਹੈ ਦਕ ਤੁਸੀ ਾਂ ਜਾਣਕਾਰੀ ਦਾ ਅਨੁਵਾਦ ਕਰਵਾਓ ਦਕਉਾਂਦਕ 

ਇਸਦੇ ਕਾਨੂੂੰ ਨੀ ਨਤੀਜੇ ਹੋ ਸਕਦੇ ਹਨ - ਇਸਨੂੂੰ  ਅਣਦੇਖਾ ਨਾ ਕਰੋ। 

 

Romanian Conținutul scrisorii atașate este extrem de important și vă impune să 
luați măsuri.  Vă recomandăm insistent să traduceți informațiile, 
deoarece pot exista consecințe legale – nu le ignorați. 

 

Russian Содержание прилагаемого письма чрезвычайно важно и требует от 
вас принятия мер. Вам настоятельно рекомендуется перевести 
информацию, поскольку могут возникнуть правовые последствия — 
не игнорируйте ее. 

 

Serbian Sadržaj priloženog pisma je izuzetno važan i zahteva od vas da 
preduzmete akciju.  Preporučujemo vam da prevedete informacije jer 
mogu postojati pravne posledice – nemojte to ignorisati. 

 

Slovak Obsah priloženého listu je mimoriadne dôležitý a vyžaduje, aby ste 
konali.  Dôrazne vám odporúčame, aby ste si informácie nechali 
preložiť, pretože to môže mať právne následky – neignorujte to. 

 

Spanish El contenido de la carta adjunta es de suma importancia y requiere que 
tome medidas. Le recomendamos encarecidamente que traduzca la 
información, ya que podría tener consecuencias legales; no la ignore. 

 

Thai เนือ้หาของจดหมายทีแ่นบมามคีวามส าคญัอย่างยิง่และจ าเป็นตอ้งด าเนินการใดๆ 

เราขอแนะน าใหค้ณุแปลขอ้มูลดงักลา่วเน่ืองจากอาจมผีลทางกฎหมายตามมา 

อย่าเพกิเฉย 

 

Turkish Ekli mektubun içeriği son derece önemlidir ve harekete geçmenizi 
gerektirir. Yasal sonuçları olabileceğinden, bilgileri tercüme ettirmeniz 
şiddetle tavsiye edilir - bunu görmezden gelmeyin. 

 

Ukrainian Зміст вкладеного листа надзвичайно важливий і вимагає від вас 
дій.  Наполегливо рекомендуємо вам отримати переклад 
інформації, оскільки це може мати правові наслідки – не ігноруйте 
це. 

 

Urdu  منسلک خط کا مواد انتہائی اہم ہے اور آپ کو کارروائی کرنے کی ضرورت ہے۔  آپ کو سختی
سے مشوره ديا جاتا ہے کہ معلومات کا ترجمہ کر ليں کيونکہ اس کے قانونی نتائج ہو سکتے ہيں 

اسے نظر انداز نہ کريں۔  –  

 
 

 

62



OFFICIAL 

SUPPLEMENT – CONDITIONS THE LICENSING AUTHORITY SEEK TO BE ADDED TO THE 
PREMISES LICENCE 

Having looked at the application in further detail, the Licensing Authority considered requesting 
the removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) – Mr Hemel Hassan. 
However, if he was removed from the premises licence as DPS, Mr Hassan remains the premises 
licence holder. A premises licence holder is responsible for the day-to-day operation of a venue, 
ensuring it upholds four (4) licensing objectives, therefore the removal of him as DPS would hold 
no value. 

The Licensing Authority therefore seeks the amendment of two (2) licensing conditions that are 
on the licence, due to the continual breach 

Current:     
Spirits of high ABV will be sold from behind the counter. 

Amend to: 
Alcohol of 15% ABV or higher will be sold from behind the counter 

This proposed amended condition, makes it enforceable and there is no confusion of what high 
ABV is. It will also help deter underage sales (as per the information held by West Mercia Police 
in their supplement) and therefore promote the licensing objectives Prevention of Crime & 
Disorder and Protection of Children from Harm.

Current: 
The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the 
licensable area of the premises. In respect of any street facing the windows, any obstruction will 
be restricted to the top 25% of the window and the bottom 25% of the window in each case. 
(Window refers to the whole area covered by glass). This will mean that at least 50% of all 
windows and 100% of all doors looking into the premises from Commercial Road are clear of 
obstruction.  No obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass 
surfaces of doors and windows, as well as any other item within the shop which obstructs the 
view through the window. 

Amend to: 
The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the 
licensable area of the premises. This will mean that 100% of all doors and windows looking into 
the premises from Commercial Road are clear of obstruction.   
No obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass surfaces of doors 
and windows (with the exception of one open/closed sign), as well as any other item within the 
shop which obstructs the view through the window (ie; racking, storage, stock). 

Due to the continual breach of this condition, and information held by West Mercia Police (which 
has been served as a supplement) the amended proposed wording enables the premises to 
easily comply with the condition and there is no confusion as to what is allowed in the window or 
on the door.  This will also allow the relevant authorities to be able to see straight into the 
premises from Commercial Road without any obstruction thus promoting the licensing objective 
Prevention of Crime & Disorder and Protection of Children of Harm.

The Licensing Authority hope that adding the amended conditions to the premises licence are 
enforceable and the current holder and any future premises licence holders should be able to 
comply with these easily.  

63





 

 

 

Revised Guidance issued  
under section 182 of the  
Licensing Act 2003 
 

 

December 2023 

65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revised Guidance issued under section 182  
of the Licensing Act 2003 
 

 

December 2023 

 

66



© Crown copyright 2023 

This publication is licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0 except where 
otherwise stated. To view this licence, visit nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-
licence/version/3  

Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from 
the copyright holders concerned. 

This publication is available at https://www.gov.uk/official-documents 

Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to us at The Alcohol Team, The Home Office, 
5th Floor, Fry Building (North West), 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF.  

Email: AlcoholTeam2@homeoffice.gov.uk 

67

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications
mailto:AlcoholTeam2@homeoffice.gov.uk


96 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

11. Reviews 
The review process 
11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club 

premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems 
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate. 

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a 
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the 
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any 
of the four licensing objectives. 

11.3 An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing 
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if 
the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance 
that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are 
outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK 
or the licensing authority’s electronic facility. The applicant must give notice of the 
review application to the responsible authorities and holder of the licence or certificate. 
The licensing authority is required to advertise a review application. 

11.4 In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it 
relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or 
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its 
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the 
basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder. 

11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply 
for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene 
early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected 
that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for 
reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These 
individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their 
own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to 
expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls 
within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate 
steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual 
exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is 
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the 
area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review. 

11.6 Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies 
for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved in this 
process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined 
previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing 
authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a 
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should 

68



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 97 

achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to 
9.19 of this Guidance. 

11.7 In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect 
of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to 
the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation 
of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating 
to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town 
centre, should generally not be regarded as relevant unless it can be positively tied or 
linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow for a proper 
review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of complaints, 
including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its closing 
time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct incidents of 
crime and disorder around a particular public house. 

11.8 Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, consideration 
may be given as whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of 
licensed premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the licensing 
authority may be asked to consider whether it would be appropriate to publish a 
cumulative impact assessment. Further guidance on cumulative impact assessments 
can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance. 

11.9 Responsible authorities and other persons may make representations in respect of an 
application to review a premises licence or club premises certificate. They must be 
relevant (i.e., relate to one or more of the licensing objectives) and, in the case of other 
persons, must not be frivolous or vexatious. Representations must be made in writing 
and may be amplified at the subsequent hearing or may stand in their own right. 
Additional representations which do not amount to an amplification of the original 
representation may not be made at the hearing. Representations may be made 
electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees and the applicant submits a 
subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives this requirement. 

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems 
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning 
of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise 
the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those 
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a 
decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing 
objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-
operation. 

11.11 If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible 
authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade 
association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the 
complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance 
on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in 
Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10). 

Repetitious grounds of review 
11.12 A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to: 

69



98 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to 
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or 

•  representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or 
certificate was granted; or 

•  representations which would have been made when the application for the premises 
licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of 
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval 
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant. 

11.13 Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to 
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence 
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier 
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as 
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more 
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation 
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar 
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order or 
illegal working compliance order. 

11.14 The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to 
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a 
licence or certificate within a 12 month period. 

11.15 When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible 
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in 
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The 
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These 
regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website 
(www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is 
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence 
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative 
has therefore been able to prepare a response. 

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review 
11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may 

exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. 

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further 
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to 
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to 
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing 
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring 
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be 
issued in writing to the licence holder. 

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health 
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in writing 
– that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing 
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account 

70

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/


Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 99 

when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may 
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been 
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.  

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is 
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 

•  modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions 
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the 
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 

•  exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
incidental live and recorded music exemption)10; 

•  remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that 
the problems are the result of poor management; 

•  suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
•  revoke the licence. 

11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities 
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the 
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these 
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response 
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review. 

11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and 
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a 
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management 
decisions made by that individual. 

11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company 
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be 
an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review 
hearings are generated, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of designated 
premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of deeper problems that impact 
upon the licensing objectives. 

11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of 
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up 
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be 
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives 
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a 
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise 
to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental 
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and 
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal 
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, 
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough 

 
10 See chapter 16 in relation to the licensing of live and recorded music. 

71



100 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed 
insufficient, to revoke the licence. 

  

72



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 101 

Reviews arising in connection with crime 
11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected 

with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at 
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen 
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities 
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter 
for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not 
therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the 
promotion of the crime prevention objective.  

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not 
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations 
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of 
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal 
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to 
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on 
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review 
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go 
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed 
evidence before them. 

11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises 
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should 
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime 
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or 
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of 
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with 
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is 
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing 
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives 
and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not 
those of the individual licence holder. 

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises 
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed 
premises: 

•  for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime; 

•  for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 
•  for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which 

does considerable damage to the industries affected; 
•  for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the 

health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of 
young people; 

•  for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 
•  by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 
•  as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs; 

73



102 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 
•  for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their 

immigration status in the UK;  
•  for unlawful gambling; and 
•  for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. 

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration 
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, 
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective 
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected 
that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously 
considered. 

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal 
working compliance order 
11.29   Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the 

review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance order under 
section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run 
concurrently and are as follows: 

•  when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a 
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review – the determination must 
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is 
received; 

•  the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after 
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received; 

•  notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first 
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice 
and the start of the hearing). 

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol 
to children 
11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly 

and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at 
the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme). 
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a 
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very 
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and 
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales 
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing 
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due 
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of 
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there 
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been 
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing 
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate. 

74



 

 

 

 
Supplement to the agenda for 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Monday 19 January 2026 

10.00 am 

Conference Room 2 - Herefordshire Council, Plough Lane 
Offices, Hereford, HR4 0LE 

 
 

 Pages 

  

4. REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF: MAGAZIN 
TIMISOARA, 22 COMMERCIAL ROAD, HEREFORD, HR1 2BD CALLED BY 
THE LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY - 
LICENSING ACT 2003   

3 - 14  

   
   

   

75



76



 

OFFICIAL 

 
Email from Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service of 13 January 2026 
 
 
Hi Matthew, 
 
Apologies I’ve been on annual leave so have only just seen the review of licence. 
 
I am unable to attend the sub-committee meeting on the 19th but in regards to fire safety, the 
premises is not compliant. 
 
 
Mr Hassan is not responding to any emails, phone calls, or in person visits and there is no 
evidence to suggest any of the works required have been completed. 
 
 
I have attached a copy of the fire safety matters letter issued to Mr Hassan. 
 
 
I am still waiting for (which is now overdue): 

• A fire risk assessment 

• Weekly fire alarm test records 

• 6 monthly service certificate of the fire alarm 

• Monthly emergency lighting test records 

• Annual emergency lighting service certificate 

• Mains Electrical Condition Report 

• PAT test certificate 

• Staff training records 

• Fire extinguisher service certificate 

• Monthly fire extinguisher check records 
 
 
 
Regards 
 
Charly Perkins  AIFireE |  Fire Safety Inspector  |  Protection Department  
Hereford & Worcester Fire and Rescue Service  |    
 

 

  

 

 
 
  

3

AGENDA ITEM 4

77

https://www.hwfire.org.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/hwfire
https://twitter.com/hwfire
https://www.firefighterscharity.org.uk/donate?utm_source=hwfrs&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=donate-email-footer
https://www.hwfire.org.uk/advice/sprinklers/


78



 

 

Tel 0345 122 4454 
Web www.hwfire.org.uk 
Email info@hwfire.org.uk 

Headquarters 
Hindlip Park 
Worcester 
WR3 8SP 

Chief Fire Officer / Chief Executive 
Jonathon Pryce KFSM, MBA, Dip, GIFireE 

C
h
i
e
f 
F
i
r
e 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r 
/ 
C
h
i
e
f 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e 

J
o
n
a
t
h
o
n 
P
r
y
c
e 
K
F
S
M
, 
M
B
A
, 
D
i
p
, 
G
I
F
i
r
e
E 

 

 
 

 
 

Magazin Timisoara Limited 
22 Commercial Road 
Hereford 
HR1 2BD 
 
For the attention of Hemen Hassan 
Sent via email:-  

 
Dear Sir 
 
The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
ACTIONS TO ADDRESS FIRE SAFETY MATTERS 
Magazin Timisoara, 22 Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BD    
 
Following the recent fire safety inspection carried out at your premises on 17 September 2025, I 
am writing to advise you of the significant findings of the Inspecting Officer (see schedule attached).   
 
My inspections of premises are based on a sampling inspection of your fire safety arrangements 
and may not have identified every deficiency.  In addition to addressing the matters identified in the 
attached schedule, you also remain responsible for reviewing your fire risk assessment, considering 
the adequacy of your existing arrangements and any extra measures that are needed to safeguard 
people. 
 
TIMESCALES FOR COMPLETION 
 
You should complete the work outlined in the schedule as soon as possible, balancing the need for 
safety against the demands on your business or undertaking.  I will re-inspect in approximately 3 
month(s) from the date of this letter.  You should complete the required actions on the schedule 
before that time. 
 
CONSEQUENCE OF NON-COMPLIANCE 
 
If you do not complete the work in the schedule before my next visit, or I find that safety provisions 

have deteriorated, the authority can serve an enforcement notice on you.  Failure to comply with an 

enforcement notice would be a criminal offence for which you could be prosecuted. In serious cases, 

the Authority may also prosecute for substantive breaches of the Fire Safety Order with or without 

also serving an enforcement notice. 

 
Please inform us at the earliest opportunity of any likely delay in completion. 
 
If you want to ask questions about this letter and schedule please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Yours faithfully 

Authorised Fire Safety Inspector 
on behalf of Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority 
Enc: Schedule of Works  

Our reference W4611685/207910/CP/cnl 

Please ask for Charly Perkins 

Email k 

Date 17 September 2025 

  BFS04 

 

579



 

 

 

 

File Ref: W4611685 
HEREFORD & WORCESTER FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 
 
Premises: Magazin Timisoara,  22 Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BD   
 
Fire Safety Inspector: Charly Perkins 
 
Date of Inspection:  17 September 2025 
 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
Note to this schedule:- 
 

• The Government guidance most suitable to your premises is Fire Safety Risk 
Assessment :  

- Offices and Shops. 

• Before you make certain changes to your premises you may have to apply for approval 
from statutory bodies and/or others having interest in them. 

• If you have any doubt about the need for approval you should ask the relevant body, 
for example, you may have to apply for approval from Building Control to make material 
alterations.  You might also need the property owner’s permission. 

 
 
1. Fire Safety Matters under Article 9 (1) – Failure to carry out a fire risk assessment  
 
There was no evidence that a suitable and sufficient fire risk assessment has been carried out.   
A guide to choosing a competent fire risk assessor can be found at   
https://firesectorfederation.co.uk/fire-risk-assessment/  
 
Required Action  
 
You must carry out a fire risk assessment.  The appropriate Fire Risk Assessment Guide relevant 
to your premises Offices and Shops can be found at www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-
responsibilities/fire-risk-assessments. You can also find local fire safety advice on our website at 
www.hwfire.org.uk/safety-and-advice/business-safety. 
 
Your fire risk assessment must also address the deficiencies I have identified during my 
inspection which are detailed in this schedule. 
 
Your risk assessment is to be reviewed frequently in order to keep it up to date and particularly if:-  

 

• there is a reason to suspect that it is no longer valid; or 

• there has been a significant change in the matters to which it relates including when the 
premises, work processes, or organisation of the work undergoes significant changes, 
extensions, or conversions. 

 
The responsible person must take action or make changes identified as necessary from the fire risk 
assessment.  
 
 
 
 
 

680

https://firesectorfederation.co.uk/fire-risk-assessment/
https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-risk-assessments
https://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-risk-assessments
https://www.hwfire.org.uk/safety-and-advice/business-safety


 

 

 

 

2. Fire Safety Matters under Article 11  – Fire safety arrangements 
 

Fire safety arrangements are inadequate:-  
 

• Arrangements for planning, organising, controlling, monitoring, reviewing and recording 
of your fire precautions are inadequate, evidenced by failings identified during our 
inspection and detailed in this schedule. 
 

Required Action  
 
The responsible person must make and give effect to arrangements for the effective planning, 
organisation, control, monitoring, reviewing and recording of the preventive and protective fire 
safety measures.  To achieve this, you should ensure there are appropriate arrangements for: 
 

• allocating areas of control, supervision and tasks to specific post holders; 

• planning of staff training; 

• systems for communicating relevant fire safety information to visitors; 

• a system for identifying and reporting defects; 

• plans for regular review of your fire risk assessment; 

• systems of monitoring of fire precautions including recording the inspection and testing of 
fire alarm system, emergency lighting, fire resisting doors, fire extinguishers, sprinklers, 
dry risers, green release boxes, Automatic Opening Vents, suppression systems are not 
complete.  

 
 

3. Fire Safety Matters under Article 8 – Inadequate measures to prevent fire 
 
Your measures for reducing the likelihood of fire occurring are not adequate; in particular:-  
 

• Portable electrical appliances are not inspected or maintained, so far as is reasonably 
practicable, to prevent danger.  
 

Required Action  
 

• Portable electrical appliances should be maintained in order to prevent danger. Guidance is 
available on the HSE Website – Electrical Safety – Portable Appliance Testing and can be 
found at PAT (Portable appliance testing).   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

781

https://www.hse.gov.uk/electricity/faq-portable-appliance-testing.htm


 

 

 

 

4. Fire Safety Matters under Article 15 – Emergency procedures and drills 
 
Appropriate emergency procedures, including fire drills, to be followed in the event of serious and 
imminent danger, have not been established. 
 

• The existing procedures do not include sufficiently detailed plans to ensure all people are 
safely evacuated in the event of fire. simultaneous evacuation drills are not carried out.  

 
Required Action  

 

• Establish procedures, suited to the premises and people who may be on the premises, to 
ensure safe evacuation; regular fire drills should be undertaken to test and practise these 
procedures. Additional drills may need to be carried out to ensure evacuation plans are 
suitable for fires occurring in different parts of the building, affecting different escape routes, 
and at any time of day or night.  

• Ensure sufficient competent persons are nominated, available and trained to implement 
emergency procedures and evacuation.  

• Make a record of emergency plans, staff training and drills undertaken as part of your fire 
safety management arrangements. 
 

 
5. Fire Safety Matters under Article 17(1) – Maintenance   
 

• The fire alarm system is not subject to a suitable system of maintenance.   

• The emergency lighting system is not subject to a suitable system of maintenance.   

• The fire extinguishers are not subject to a suitable system of maintenance.     
 

Required Action 
The premises and any facilities, equipment and devices, provided to safeguard people from fire, 
must be subject to a suitable system of maintenance and maintained in an efficient state, in efficient 
working order and good repair; specifically: 
 

• The fire alarm system should be subject to a suitable system of maintenance – guidelines 
for this are detailed in the current BS 5839. 

• The emergency lighting system should be subject to a suitable system of maintenance – 
guidelines for this are detailed in the current BS 5266. 

• Firefighting equipment should be subject to a suitable system maintenance – guidelines for 
this are detailed in the current BS 5306. 

 
Records should be kept of your testing and maintenance of fire safety provisions as this can provide 
evidence of your procedures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

882



 

 

 

 

 
6. Fire Safety Matters under Article 21 – Training 
 
Fire safety training provided to employees is inadequate.  
 
Required Action  

 

Employees must be provided with adequate fire safety training:- 

• at the time they are first employed, repeated regularly and 

• on being exposed to new or increased risks because of:- 
▪ being transferred or a change of responsibility; 
▪ introduction of new work equipment or a change to existing equipment; 
▪ introduction of new technology; 
▪ introduction of new systems of work, or change to existing systems of work. 

 
You must ensure that the safety training provided:- 
 

• includes suitable and sufficient instruction and training on the appropriate precautions and 
actions to be taken in order to safeguard themselves and others;  

• is adapted to take account of any new or changed risks to the safety of employees         
concerned; 

• is provided in a manner appropriate to the risk identified by the risk assessment ; and 

• takes place during working hours. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

983



 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Measures to prevent fire 
 
Electrical appliances, particularly white goods (such as washing machines, fridge’s, dishwashers, 
freezers) should be registered with manufacturers (s) to ensure you are informed of any 
manufacturing fault/product recall at the earliest opportunity. You can register for free at – 
https://www.registermyappliance.org.uk   
 
Liaison and contact with emergency services 
 
You should make arrangements for the provision of information to the fire and rescue service, for 
use on arrival and during the course of any fire emergency. This should include provision of a “grab 
bag” which contains items such as but not limited to:- 

• An up to date plan of the building which identifies electricity, gas and water isolation 
points and the location of all known hazards such as gas cylinders 

• An emergency contacts list 

• A copy of the emergency plan 
 
Liaison and contact with emergency services 
 
For a fire alarm and fire detection system to give the maximum benefit, the fire and rescue service 
needs to be summoned as quickly as possible on every occasion that it operates in the event of a 
fire, unless, in order to avoid false alarms being passed to the fire and rescue service, filtering 
arrangements are appropriate. Since the objective of a Category L system is evacuation of 
occupants, rather than protection of property, manual summoning of the fire and rescue service by 
occupants might, again, suffice. However, if the early attendance of the fire and rescue service is 
likely to be essential to life safety in the event of fire (e.g. in hospitals and residential care homes), 
a secondary, automatic means of transmission might be warranted, unless there are adequate 
arrangements to ensure that there is no delay at any time in manual summoning of the fire and 
rescue service by occupants. In practice, automatic transmission of fire alarm signals is considered 
necessary in the case of residential care premises. 
 
For further guidance see BS 5839-1. 

 
Escape routes and exits 
 
Some wiring systems (cabling & trunking) are not satisfactorily fixed to walls / ceilings to prevent 
cables falling into the path of persons evacuating (or firefighters entering) the building during a fire 
situation. 
 
BS 7671 (IET Wiring Regulations Eighteenth Edition), includes a requirement that wiring systems 
in escape routes shall have fire resisting supports. A suitable guidance document would be BEAMA 
(British Electrotechnical and Allied Manufacturers' Association). The purpose of this guidance 
document is to aid installers to select and erect wiring systems to prevent cables from premature 
collapse due to the effects of heat caused by fire. Your fire risk assessment should identify areas 
where cables require retaining with fire resisting supports. 
 

• NOTE 1: Non-metallic cable trunking or other non-metallic means of support can fail 
when subject to either direct flame or hot products of combustion. This may lead to 
wiring systems hanging across access or egress routes such that they hinder 
evacuation and firefighting activities.  

• NOTE 2: This precludes the use of non-metallic cable clips, cable ties or trunking as 
the sole means of support. For example, where non-metallic trunking is used, a 

1084

https://www.registermyappliance.org.uk/


 

 

 

 

suitable fire-resistant means of support/retention must be provided to prevent cables 
falling out in the event of fire.”  

 
Sprinkler Systems 

 

Hereford and Worcester Fire & Rescue Service is committed to putting our communities first, 

protecting life and property and supporting business resilience.  In line with this, HWFRS endorses 

the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) position statement on sprinklers, that “they are the most 

effective way to ensure that fires are suppressed or even extinguished before the fire service can 

arrive”.  As such part of HWFRS Protection Strategy is to promote the introduction and use of 

sprinklers both commercially and domestically. As such part of HWFRS Protection Strategy is to 

promote the introduction and use of sprinklers both commercially and domestically. 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND DEFINITIONS 

 
Fire Resisting (Fire Resistance) 
The ability of a component or construction of a building to satisfy, for a stated period of time, some 
or all of the appropriate criteria specified in the relevant British Standard. 
 
Intumescent Strips 
A strip of material placed along the door edges (excluding the bottom edge) or frame, that will react 
to heat by expanding to form a seal to the passage of hot gases and flame. 
 
Smoke Seal 
A flexible strip of material (often used in conjunction with an intumescent strip) placed along the 
door edges or frame to limit the spread of cold smoke during the early stages of fire. 
 
Self Closing Device 
A device which is capable of closing the door from any angle and against any latch fitted to the 
door.  Rising butt hinges are not acceptable. 
 
Automatic Door Release 
A device, linked to (or operated by the sound of) the fire alarm system that when fitted to a fire 
resisting self closing door, enables it to be held open during normal working conditions. 
 
Emergency Escape Lighting 
That part of the emergency lighting system provided for use when the electricity supply to the normal 
lighting fails so as to ensure that the means of escape can be safely and effectively used at all 
times. 
 
Risk Assessment 
An organised appraisal of your activities and premises to enable you to identify potential fire 
hazards, and to decide who (including employees and visitors) might be in danger in the event of 
fire, and their location.  You will then evaluate the risks arising from the hazards and decide whether 
the existing fire precautions are adequate, or whether more needs to be done.  It will be necessary 
for you to record your findings (if you have five or more employees) and to review and revise when 
necessary. 
 

  

1185

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnfcc.org.uk%2Four-services%2Fposition-statements%2Fautomatic-water-suppression-systems-policy-statement%2F&data=05%7C02%7CKLambourn%40hwfire.org.uk%7C18463c0b90e642a4fefe08dd99f0bbe4%7C09c53cc0fd994f8cbc79935df9539402%7C0%7C0%7C638835981500020606%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kN%2B0DvQQOOgdwKVEiigxQaM%2B32vy3wP6lKIYWxUe3JM%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnfcc.org.uk%2Four-services%2Fposition-statements%2Fautomatic-water-suppression-systems-policy-statement%2F&data=05%7C02%7CKLambourn%40hwfire.org.uk%7C18463c0b90e642a4fefe08dd99f0bbe4%7C09c53cc0fd994f8cbc79935df9539402%7C0%7C0%7C638835981500064914%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ds1GECO82JCIfAvLTwyNSakgfvsCaCOGtKzHhTdDF8Y%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 

 

The content of the attached letter is extremely important and requires you to take action.  
You are strongly advised to get the information translated as there may be legal 
consequences – do not ignore it. 
 

 

Albanian Përmbajtja e letrës së bashkangjitur është jashtëzakonisht e 
rëndësishme dhe kërkon që ju të merrni masa.  Ju këshillojmë fuqimisht 
që të përktheni informacionin pasi mund të ketë pasoja ligjore – mos e 
injoroni. 

 

Arabic   محتوى الرسالة المرفقة بالغ الأهمية ويتطلب منك اتخاذ إجراء. ننصحك بشدة بترجمة المعلومات، فقد
فلا تتجاهلها.تترتب على ذلك عواقب قانونية،   

 

Bulgarian Sŭdŭrzhanieto na prikachenoto pismo e izklyuchitelno vazhno i nalaga 
da predpriemete deĭstviya.  Silno vi sŭvetvame da poluchite prevedena 
informatsiya, tŭĭ kato mozhe da ima pravni posleditsi – ne ya 
prenebregvaĭte. 

 

Chinese 所附信件的內容極為重要，需要您採取行動。  強烈建議您翻譯該訊息，

因為可能會產生法律後果——不要忽視它。 

 

Croatian Sadržaj priloženog pisma je izuzetno važan i zahtijeva od vas da nešto 
poduzmete.  Toplo vam savjetujemo da prevedete informacije jer mogu 
postojati pravne posljedice – nemojte to zanemariti. 

 

Czech Obsah přiloženého dopisu je nesmírně důležitý a vyžaduje, abyste 
podnikli kroky.  Důrazně vám doporučujeme, abyste si informace 
nechali přeložit, protože to může mít právní důsledky – neignorujte to. 

 

Farsi  محتوای نامه پيوست فوق العاده مهم است و شما را ملزم به اقدام می کند.  اکيداً به شما توصيه می
آن را ناديده نگيريد.  -شود که اطلاعات را ترجمه کنيد زيرا ممکن است عواقب قانونی داشته باشد   

 

French Le contenu de la lettre ci-jointe est extrêmement important et nécessite 
votre intervention. Il est fortement recommandé de faire traduire ces 
informations, car elles peuvent avoir des conséquences juridiques ; ne 
les ignorez pas. 

 

German Der Inhalt des beigefügten Schreibens ist äußerst wichtig und erfordert 
Ihr Handeln. Wir empfehlen Ihnen dringend, die Informationen 
übersetzen zu lassen, da dies rechtliche Konsequenzen haben kann. 
Ignorieren Sie dies nicht. 

 

Greek Το περιεχόμενο της συνημμένης επιστολής είναι εξαιρετικά σημαντικό 
και απαιτεί από εσάς να λάβετε μέτρα.  Σας συμβουλεύουμε 
ανεπιφύλακτα να μεταφράσετε τις πληροφορίες καθώς ενδέχεται να 
υπάρξουν νομικές συνέπειες – μην το αγνοήσετε. 

 

Hebrew .מומלץ בחום לתרגם את   תוכן המכתב המצורף חשוב ביותר ודורש מכם לפעול
אל תתעלם ממנו.  -המידע מכיוון שעשויות להיות השלכות משפטיות   

 

Italian Il contenuto della lettera allegata è estremamente importante e richiede 
un intervento da parte vostra. Vi consigliamo vivamente di far tradurre le 
informazioni, poiché potrebbero esserci conseguenze legali: non 
ignoratele. 

 

Latvian Pievienotās vēstules saturs ir ārkārtīgi svarīgs un liek jums rīkoties.  
Jums ir ļoti ieteicams iegūt informācijas tulkošanu, jo tam var būt 
juridiskas sekas – neignorējiet to. 

 

Lithuanian Prisegto laiško turinys yra nepaprastai svarbus ir reikalauja imtis 
veiksmų.  Primygtinai rekomenduojame informaciją išversti, nes tai gali 
turėti teisinių pasekmių – neignoruokite jos. 

1286



 

 

 

 

 

Polish Treść załączonego listu jest niezwykle ważna i wymaga podjęcia przez 
Ciebie działań. Zdecydowanie zaleca się przetłumaczenie informacji, 
ponieważ mogą wystąpić konsekwencje prawne – nie ignoruj tego. 

 

Punjabi ਨੱਥੀ ਪੱਤਰ ਦੀ ਸਮੱਗਰੀ ਬਹਤੁ ਮਹੱਤਵਪੂਰਨ ਹੈ ਅਤੇ ਤੁਹਾਨੂੂੰ  ਕਾਰਵਾਈ ਕਰਨ ਦੀ ਲੋੜ ਹੈ। 

ਤੁਹਾਨੂੂੰ  ਪੁਰਜੋਰ ਸਲਾਹ ਦਦੱਤੀ ਜਾਾਂਦੀ ਹੈ ਦਕ ਤੁਸੀ ਾਂ ਜਾਣਕਾਰੀ ਦਾ ਅਨੁਵਾਦ ਕਰਵਾਓ ਦਕਉਾਂਦਕ 

ਇਸਦੇ ਕਾਨੂੂੰ ਨੀ ਨਤੀਜੇ ਹੋ ਸਕਦੇ ਹਨ - ਇਸਨੂੂੰ  ਅਣਦੇਖਾ ਨਾ ਕਰੋ। 

 

Romanian Conținutul scrisorii atașate este extrem de important și vă impune să 
luați măsuri.  Vă recomandăm insistent să traduceți informațiile, 
deoarece pot exista consecințe legale – nu le ignorați. 

 

Russian Содержание прилагаемого письма чрезвычайно важно и требует от 
вас принятия мер. Вам настоятельно рекомендуется перевести 
информацию, поскольку могут возникнуть правовые последствия — 
не игнорируйте ее. 

 

Serbian Sadržaj priloženog pisma je izuzetno važan i zahteva od vas da 
preduzmete akciju.  Preporučujemo vam da prevedete informacije jer 
mogu postojati pravne posledice – nemojte to ignorisati. 

 

Slovak Obsah priloženého listu je mimoriadne dôležitý a vyžaduje, aby ste 
konali.  Dôrazne vám odporúčame, aby ste si informácie nechali 
preložiť, pretože to môže mať právne následky – neignorujte to. 

 

Spanish El contenido de la carta adjunta es de suma importancia y requiere que 
tome medidas. Le recomendamos encarecidamente que traduzca la 
información, ya que podría tener consecuencias legales; no la ignore. 

 

Thai เนือ้หาของจดหมายทีแ่นบมามคีวามส าคญัอย่างยิง่และจ าเป็นตอ้งด าเนินการใดๆ 

เราขอแนะน าใหค้ณุแปลขอ้มูลดงักลา่วเน่ืองจากอาจมผีลทางกฎหมายตามมา 

อย่าเพกิเฉย 

 

Turkish Ekli mektubun içeriği son derece önemlidir ve harekete geçmenizi 
gerektirir. Yasal sonuçları olabileceğinden, bilgileri tercüme ettirmeniz 
şiddetle tavsiye edilir - bunu görmezden gelmeyin. 

 

Ukrainian Зміст вкладеного листа надзвичайно важливий і вимагає від вас 
дій.  Наполегливо рекомендуємо вам отримати переклад 
інформації, оскільки це може мати правові наслідки – не ігноруйте 
це. 

 

Urdu  منسلک خط کا مواد انتہائی اہم ہے اور آپ کو کارروائی کرنے کی ضرورت ہے۔  آپ کو سختی
سے مشوره ديا جاتا ہے کہ معلومات کا ترجمہ کر ليں کيونکہ اس کے قانونی نتائج ہو سکتے ہيں 

اسے نظر انداز نہ کريں۔  –  

 
 

 

1387



88



OFFICIAL 

SUPPLEMENT – CONDITIONS THE LICENSING AUTHORITY SEEK TO BE ADDED TO THE 
PREMISES LICENCE 

Having looked at the application in further detail, the Licensing Authority considered requesting 
the removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) – Mr Hemel Hassan. 
However, if he was removed from the premises licence as DPS, Mr Hassan remains the premises 
licence holder. A premises licence holder is responsible for the day-to-day operation of a venue, 
ensuring it upholds four (4) licensing objectives, therefore the removal of him as DPS would hold 
no value. 

The Licensing Authority therefore seeks the amendment of two (2) licensing conditions that are 
on the licence, due to the continual breach 

Current:     
Spirits of high ABV will be sold from behind the counter. 

Amend to: 
Alcohol of 15% ABV or higher will be sold from behind the counter 

This proposed amended condition, makes it enforceable and there is no confusion of what high 
ABV is. It will also help deter underage sales (as per the information held by West Mercia Police 
in their supplement) and therefore promote the licensing objectives Prevention of Crime & 
Disorder and Protection of Children from Harm.

Current: 
The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the 
licensable area of the premises. In respect of any street facing the windows, any obstruction will 
be restricted to the top 25% of the window and the bottom 25% of the window in each case. 
(Window refers to the whole area covered by glass). This will mean that at least 50% of all 
windows and 100% of all doors looking into the premises from Commercial Road are clear of 
obstruction.  No obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass 
surfaces of doors and windows, as well as any other item within the shop which obstructs the 
view through the window. 

Amend to: 
The premises licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the 
licensable area of the premises. This will mean that 100% of all doors and windows looking into 
the premises from Commercial Road are clear of obstruction.   
No obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass surfaces of doors 
and windows (with the exception of one open/closed sign), as well as any other item within the 
shop which obstructs the view through the window (ie; racking, storage, stock). 

Due to the continual breach of this condition, and information held by West Mercia Police (which 
has been served as a supplement) the amended proposed wording enables the premises to 
easily comply with the condition and there is no confusion as to what is allowed in the window or 
on the door.  This will also allow the relevant authorities to be able to see straight into the 
premises from Commercial Road without any obstruction thus promoting the licensing objective 
Prevention of Crime & Disorder and Protection of Children of Harm.

The Licensing Authority hope that adding the amended conditions to the premises licence are 
enforceable and the current holder and any future premises licence holders should be able to 
comply with these easily.  

89





MG11 

 RESTRICTED (when complete)  

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

Signature:   Signature witnessed by:   
 
2013 d_rey001/01/26 

 

WITNESS STATEMENT 
(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9; Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, s.5B) 

 

 URN:  

 
Statement of:  Duncan Reynolds 
 
Age if under 18:  Over 18 Occupation:  Police Officer 
 
This statement (consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and 
belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have 
wilfully stated anything in it, which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 
 
Signature  Date:  17th January 2026 

 
 
I am the Safer Neighbourhood Sergeant for Hereford City Centre which is a position I 
have held for over 10 years. 
 
West Mercia Police is focusing Policing attention to our areas of most demand for 
Anti-Social Behaviour and Serious Violence, using the Hot Spot Policing tactic. 
One of three small locations within the City Centre have been designated a ‘Hotspot’, 
including: 
 
Commercial Street / Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BT  
 
The supporting data for this is: 
Commercial Road: 39% of offence volume, 38% of harm 
Commercial Street: 29% of offence volume, 29% of harm 
 
Total: 68% of offence volume, 67% of harm 
 
Broken down as: 
VIOLENCE WITHOUT INJURY 49.55% 
VIOLENCE WITH INJURY 48.20% 
ROBBERY - PERSONAL 2.25% 
AS-Nuisance 87.50% 
AS-Personal 11.25% 
AS-Environmental 1.25%" 
 
The peak times for the offence types are: 
Serious Violence: 18:00 - 06:00 hours 
Anti-Social Behaviour: 15:00 - 05:00 hours 

 
 

The specific area has been produced by our analysts in the map below: 

91



MG11 

 RESTRICTED (when complete)  

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Statement of:  Duncan REYNOLDS URN:  

 

 

Signature:  D J REYNOLDS 

2010/11 d_rey001/01/26 

 
 

 

There are a number of different Policing and Partner Agency tactics being employed 
within the Hotspots to reduce the crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour. 
 
One such tactic is to conduct Police and Multi Agency visits and inspections to 
businesses which have been identified as a result of reports and intelligence. 
 
One of these businesses is MAGAZIN TIMISOARA, COMMERCIAL ROAD, 
HEREFORD, HR1 2BB. 
 
 

92



MG11 

 RESTRICTED (when complete)  

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Statement of:  Duncan REYNOLDS URN:  

 

 

Signature:   

2010/11 d_rey001/01/26 

TIMISOARA has featured in a number of Police investigations and submissions of 
intelligence in the last couple of years which contribute to identifying issues with the 
business and those individuals that run it. 
 
In 2024 we received information that TIMISOARA was buying stolen goods from 
known shoplifters. 
 
In 2023 we received information that persons running the business were selling 
drugs, including cocaine to people in the Nighttime Economy. 
 
In 2023 we received information that illegal tobacco and vapes were being sold within 
the store. 
 
In 2024 we received information that alcohol was being sold to underage girls. 
 
There have also been several Police investigations in 2025 at the premises which 
include thefts, criminal damage, threats to kill, public order, racial abuse.  Many of 
these incidents involve altercations between staff and customers which have resulted 
in criminal investigations.   
 
On these occasions the customers have been under the influence of drink and drugs 
and even when the store or the staff have been recorded as victims, there are 
concerns in the level of aggression and behaviour displayed by staff towards the 
suspects of the offences which have either caused or escalated the situation. 
 
Very few of the investigations have concluded with a positive outcome because of 
evidential difficulties such as the behaviour of staff or an issue with Police obtaining 
CCTV from within the store. 
 
In my opinion, the intelligence we receive and the issues at the premises are 
disproportionate to other similar businesses around the City Centre and support the 
view that the premises are not effectively managed. 
 
The sale of alcohol to underage females will directly lead to anti-social behaviour and 
potentially put the safety of young girls at risk of exploitation, being a victim of sexual 
offences and may lead to further disorder and violence at or near the location. 
 
I am supporting the review and potential revocation of the licence of MAGAZIN 
TIMISOARA, from my role as Sergeant for the Safer Neighbourhood Team in 
Hereford City Centre, to reduce the ASB and violent offences occurring in the 
location during the key times identified by the analysis of the supporting data. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

93





Document is Restricted

95

AGENDA ITEM 6





Document is Restricted

103





Document is Restricted

111





Document is Restricted

117





Document is Restricted

123





Document is Restricted

131





Document is Restricted

135





Document is Restricted

139





Document is Restricted

149

AGENDA ITEM 7





Document is Restricted

153





Document is Restricted

161




	Agenda
	 Public Information
	Licensing Hearing Flowchart

	 The Nolan Principles
	4 Review of a premises licence in respect of: Magazin Timisoara, 22 Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BD called by the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority- Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11
	Contents
	1. Introduction
	The Licensing Act 2003
	Licensing objectives and aims
	The guidance
	Purpose
	Legal status
	Licensing policies
	Licensable activities
	Authorisations or permissions
	General principles
	Licence conditions – general principles
	Each application on its own merits
	Additional guidance
	Other relevant legislation

	2. The licensing objectives
	Crime and disorder
	Public safety
	Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises
	Maintenance and repair
	Safe capacities
	Public nuisance
	Protection of children from harm
	Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children

	Table of relevant offences under the 2003 Act

	3. Licensable activities
	Summary
	Wholesale of alcohol
	Mobile, remote, internet and other delivery sales
	Regulated entertainment
	Late night refreshment
	Late night refreshment exemptions based on designated locations, premises types and times
	Unauthorised activities

	4. Personal licences
	Requirements for a personal licence
	Who can apply?
	Criminal record
	Issuing of personal licences by Welsh licensing authorities
	Licensing qualifications
	Relevant licensing authority
	Changes in name or address
	Specification of new designated premises supervisors
	Police objections to new designated premises supervisors
	Police objections to existing designated premises supervisors
	Convictions and liaison with the courts
	Licensing authority powers to revoke or suspend personal licences
	Relevant offences
	Disapplication of certain mandatory conditions for community premises
	Definition of community premises
	Management of the premises
	Police views
	Appeals

	5. Who needs a premises licence?
	Relevant parts of Act
	Premises licensed for gambling
	Designated sports grounds, designated sports events and major outdoor sports stadia
	Sporting events at stadia with retractable roofs
	Vessels
	International airports and ports
	Vehicles
	Trains and aircraft
	Garages and motorway service areas
	Large scale time-limited events requiring premises licences

	6. Club premises certificates
	General
	Qualifying conditions
	Associate members and guests
	Applications for the grant or variation of club premises certificates
	Steps needed to promote the licensing objectives

	7. Temporary Event Notices (TENs)
	General
	Standard and late temporary event notices
	Standard temporary event notices
	Late temporary event notices

	Limitations
	Who can give a temporary event notice?
	Personal licence holders
	Non-personal licence holders

	Role of the licensing authority
	Police and environmental health intervention
	Modification
	Applying conditions to a TEN
	Duty of premises users to keep and produce TENs

	8. Applications for premises licences
	Relevant licensing authority
	Authorised persons
	Responsible authorities
	Other persons
	Who can apply for a premises licence?
	Application forms
	Electronic applications
	Electronic applications using forms on gov.uk
	Requirement to copy application to responsible authorities
	Applications via the local authority electronic application facility
	‘Holding’ and ‘deferring’ electronic applications
	Written applications

	Plans
	Beer gardens or other outdoor spaces

	Entitlement to work in the UK
	Steps to promote the licensing objectives
	Variations
	Introduction
	Simplified processes
	Minor variations process
	Changes to structure/layout
	Licensable Activities
	Licensing hours

	Licensing conditions
	a) Imposed conditions
	b) Volunteered conditions
	c) Amending or removing existing conditions

	Full variations process
	Relaxation of opening hours for local, national and international occasions
	Advertising applications
	Applications to change the designated premises supervisors
	Provisional statements
	Transfers of premises licences
	Interim authorities
	Right of freeholders etc to be notified of licensing matters

	9. Determining applications
	General
	Where no representations are made
	Where representations are made
	Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations
	The role of responsible authorities
	Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities
	Health bodies acting as responsible authorities
	Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible authority
	Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations
	Hearings
	Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives
	Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are made simultaneously

	10. Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates
	General
	Proposed conditions
	Consistency with steps described in operating schedule
	Imposed conditions
	Proportionality
	Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises
	Hours of trading

	The performance of plays
	Censorship
	Major festivals and carnivals
	Fixed prices
	Large capacity venues used exclusively or primarily for the “vertical” consumption of alcohol (HVVDs)
	Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol
	Designated premises supervisor
	Authorisation by personal licence holders
	Arrangements for the mandatory licence conditions
	Irresponsible promotions
	Drinking games
	Large quantities of alcohol for free or a fixed price
	Prizes and rewards
	Posters and flyers
	Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth
	Free potable water
	Age verification
	Smaller measures
	Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price
	Exhibition of films
	Door supervision


	11. Reviews
	The review process
	Repetitious grounds of review
	Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review
	Reviews arising in connection with crime
	Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal working compliance order
	Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol to children

	12. Summary reviews
	Application for summary review
	The licensing authority and interim steps pending the review
	Making representations against the interim steps
	The review of the premises licence under section 53C
	Review of the interim steps under section 53D
	Right of appeal against review of interim steps decision
	Right of appeal against final review decision
	Flow diagram of the summary review process

	13. Appeals
	General
	Licensing policy statements and Section 182 guidance
	Giving reasons for decisions
	Implementing the determination of the magistrates’ courts
	Provisional statements

	14. Statements of licensing policy
	Introduction
	The Licensing Act 2003

	General
	Consultation on policies
	Fundamental principles
	Licence conditions
	Enforcement
	Entertainment provision
	The need for licensed premises
	The cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed premises
	Limitations on special policies relating to cumulative impact
	Other mechanisms for controlling cumulative impact
	Public Spaces Protection Order
	Licensing hours
	Children
	Responsible authority and children
	Children and cinemas
	Integrating strategies
	Planning and building control
	Promotion of equality
	Administration, exercise and delegation of functions
	Table: Recommended Delegation of Functions

	15. Licence fees
	Dispute
	Administrative error
	Suspension
	Effects of suspension
	Additional fees for large scale events

	16. Regulated entertainment
	Types of regulated entertainment
	Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are not licensable
	General circumstances in which entertainment activities are licensable
	Audience
	Private events

	Circumstances in which entertainment activities are no longer licensable
	Local authorities, hospital healthcare providers and school proprietors: cross-entertainment activity exemption
	Local authority, hospital and school premises: third party music entertainment
	Community premises: music entertainment
	Community premises: exhibition of film
	Travelling circuses
	Live music
	Key terms used in relation to live music
	Recorded music
	Plays and dance
	Indoor Sport

	Licence conditions
	Live Music or recorded music
	Beer gardens
	Plays, dance and indoor sport
	Boxing or wrestling entertainment and conditions relating to combined fighting sports
	Conditions relating to other non-licensable activities
	Removing licence conditions

	Licence reviews: Live and recorded music
	Incidental music
	Busking
	Incidental film
	Entertainment activity provided as part of childcare
	Other Licensing regimes
	Copyright
	Leafleting
	Child performers


	17. Early morning alcohol restriction orders
	General
	The EMRO process
	Evidence
	Introducing an EMRO
	Advertising an EMRO
	Representations
	Hearings
	Final EMRO
	Exceptions to an EMRO
	Enforcement of EMROs
	EMRO Process Flowchart


	SUPPLEMENT (i) - Information from HWFRS
	Agenda
	4 Review of a premises licence in respect of: Magazin Timisoara, 22 Commercial Road, Hereford, HR1 2BD called by the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority - Licensing Act 2003
	Correspondence from HWFRS to PLH


	SUPPLEMENT (ii) – Information from the Licensing Authority
	SUPPLEMENT (iii) – Information from West Mercia Police

	6 Review of a premises licence in respect of: Taste of Raj, 67 St Owen Street, Hereford HR1 2JQ called by the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority- Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7

	7 Review of a premises licence in respect of: Jalsagor, 60 St Owen Street, Hereford HR1 2JQ called by the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2




